
 
JOHN WARD 
Director of Corporate Services 
 
Contact: Democratic Services 
Email: democraticservices@chichester.gov.uk 

 

East Pallant House 
1 East Pallant 
Chichester 
West Sussex 
PO19 1TY 
Tel: 01243 785166 
www.chichester.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
A meeting of the Cabinet will be held in the Committee Rooms, East Pallant House on 
Tuesday 7 December 2021 at 9.30 am 
 
MEMBERS: Mrs E Lintill (Chairman), Mrs S Taylor (Vice-Chairman), Mr R Briscoe, 

Mr A Dignum, Mrs P Plant, Mr A Sutton and Mr P Wilding 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

1   Chair's Announcements  
 The Chair will make any specific announcements for this meeting and advise of 

any late items which due to special circumstances will be given urgent 
consideration under Late Items.  

2   Approval of Minutes (Pages 1 - 12) 

3   Declarations of Interests  
 Members are requested to make any declarations of disclosable pecuniary, 

personal and/or prejudicial interests they might have in respect of matters on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  
 In accordance with Chichester District Council’s scheme for public question time 

the Cabinet will receive any questions which have been submitted by members of 
the public in writing by noon two working days before the meeting. Each questioner 
will be given up to three minutes to ask their question. The total time allocated for 
public question time is 15 minutes subject to the Chair’s discretion to extend that 
period.  

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

5   Corporate Plan 2022/25 - Cllr Sharp Recommendation from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  

 At the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 16 November 2021 it was 
proposed by Cllr Sharp and seconded by Cllr Moss that the Committee 
recommend to Cabinet that the Corporate Plan success measures include safe 
jobs, in that the Council promote green jobs in the sectors of renewable, retrofitting 
and the circular economy. The Committee then voted on this proposal which was 
carried.    
 
Cabinet are therefore asked to consider the following recommendation: 
 
That the Corporate Plan success measures include safe jobs, in that the Council 
promote green jobs in the sectors of renewable, retrofitting and the circular 
economy. 

 

Public Document Pack



RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

6   Determination of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2022-2023 (Pages 13 
- 38) 

 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and its appendix and make the 
following recommendation and resolution: 
 
RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL 

 
That Cabinet recommend that the proposed Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 
2022-2023 be approved by full Council. 
 
RESOLVED 

 
That Cabinet delegate approval for mid-year changes in the Scheme, where it is 
deemed appropriate to the Director for Housing & Communities following 
consultation with the Director of Corporate Services and Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Corporate Services and Revenues and Benefits. 

 
KEY DECISIONS 

 

7   Determination of the Council Tax Base 2022-2023 (Pages 39 - 46) 
 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and its appendices and make the 

following resolutions: 
 

1. In order to comply with section 35 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, that the following resolutions be made;   

2. No item of expenditure shall be treated as ‘special expenses’ for the 
purposes of section 35 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

3. This resolution in (2.2) shall remain in force for the 2022-2023 financial 
year. 

4. The calculation of the Chichester District Council’s taxbase for the year 
2022-2023 be approved. 

5. The amounts calculated by Chichester District Council as its council 
taxbase be those set out in appendices 1 and 2 to this report.  

8   Fees and Policies under The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site 
to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020 (Pages 47 - 72) 

 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and its appendices and make the 
following resolutions: 
 
To approve the proposed fee and separate supporting Fees and Determination 
Policies.  

OTHER DECISIONS 
 

9   Expenditure under the Planting Trees Outside Woodlands Project (Pages 73 - 
76) 

 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and make the following resolution: 
 
That Cabinet delegates authority to the Director of Planning and Environment, 
following consultation with the Cabinet Member for the Environment and 
Chichester Contract Services for the release of grant funding from DEFRA for the 



following two projects: 
 

1. £25,000 for the Agroforestry and Orchards Pilot; and 
2. £40,000 for the Hedgerow Tree Pilot 

10   Late Items  
 a) Items added to the agenda papers and made available for public 

inspection 
b) Items which the Chair has agreed should be taken as matters of urgency 

by reason of special circumstances to be reported at the meeting 

11   Urgent Decision Notice - Trade Waste Bins (Page 77) 
 The Cabinet is requested to note the Urgent Decision Notice relating to Trade 

Waste Bins. 

12   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 The Cabinet is asked to consider in respect of agenda items 13-17 whether the 

public including the press should be excluded from the meeting on the following 
ground of exemption in Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 namely 
Paragraph 3 (Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)) and because, in 
all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
of that information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  
 
[Note The report and its appendices within this part of the agenda are attached for 
members of the Council and relevant only (printed on salmon paper)] 

13   Beach Management Plan (BMP) - Shingle Replenishment 2022-2024 (Pages 
79 - 88) 

 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and its appendices and make the 
resolutions set out in section 2.1 of the report.  

14   Chichester Contract Service: Procurement of new refuse collection vehicles 
(Pages 89 - 94) 

 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and its appendix make the 
resolutions as set out in sections 2.1 and 2.2 of the report. 

15   Leisure Services Contract Update (Pages 95 - 97) 
 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and make the resolution set out at 

section 2.1 of the report.  

16   Southern Gateway Project (Pages 99 - 134) 
 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and its appendices and make the 

resolutions as set out in sections 3.1-3.5 of the report. 

17   Urgent Decision Notice - Westgate Decarbonisation Project (Pages 135 - 136) 
 The Cabinet is requested to note the part II Urgent Decision Notice related to the 

Westgate Decarbonisation Project. 
 
 

NOTES 
 

(1)   The press and public may be excluded from the meeting during any item of 
business wherever it is likely that there would be disclosure of ‘exempt information’ 
as defined in section 100A of and Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972.  



(2) The press and public may view the report appendices which are not included with 
their copy of the agenda on the Council’s website at Chichester District Council - 
Minutes, agendas and reports unless they contain exempt information.  

(3) Subject to the provisions allowing the exclusion of the press and public, the 
photographing, filming or recording of this meeting from the public seating area is 
permitted. To assist with the management of the meeting, anyone wishing to do 
this is asked to inform Democratic Services of their intentions before the meeting 
starts. The use of mobile devices for access to social media is permitted, but these 
should be switched to silent for the duration of the meeting. Those undertaking 
such activities must do so discreetly and not disrupt the meeting, for example by 
oral commentary, excessive noise, distracting movement or flash photography. 
Filming of children, vulnerable adults or members of the audience who object 
should be avoided. [Standing Order 11.3 of Chichester District Council’s 
Constitution]  

(4) Subject to Covid-19 Risk Assessments members of the public are advised of the 
following:  

ii) Where public meetings are being held at East Pallant House in order to best 
manage the space available members of the public are in the first instance 
asked to listen to the meeting online via the council’s committee pages.  

iii) Where a member of the public has registered a question or statement they will 
be invited to submit the question or statement in advance to be read out by 
Democratic Services. They may attend the meeting but will be asked to sit in an 
allocated seat in the public gallery.  

iv) It is recommended that all those attending take a lateral flow test prior to the 
meeting.  

v) All those attending the meeting will be required to wear face coverings and 
maintain social distancing when in the building/meeting room.  

vi) Members of the public must not attend any face to face meeting if they or a 
member of their household have Covid-19 symptoms and/or are required to self-
isolate.  

(5) A key decision means an executive decision which is likely to:  

 

 result in Chichester District Council (CDC) incurring expenditure which is, or 
the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the CDC’s 
budget for the service or function to which the decision relates or  

 be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area 
comprising one or more wards in the CDC’s area or  

 incur expenditure, generate income, or produce savings greater than 
£100,000  

 
NON-CABINET MEMBER COUNCILLORS SPEAKING AT THE CABINET 

 
Standing Order 22.3 of Chichester District Council’s Constitution provides that members of 
the Council may, with the Chairman’s consent, speak at a committee meeting of which 
they are not a member, or temporarily sit and speak at the committee table on a particular 
item but shall then return to the public seating area. 
 

The Leader of the Council intends to apply this standing order at Cabinet meetings by 
requesting that members should normally seek the Chairman’s consent in writing by email 
in advance of the meeting. They should do this by noon on the Friday before the Cabinet 
meeting, outlining the substance of the matter that they wish to raise. The word normally is 



emphasised because there may be unforeseen circumstances where a member can assist 
the conduct of business by his or her contribution and where the Chairman would 
therefore retain their discretion to allow the contribution without the aforesaid notice. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

 

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held in Committee Rooms, East Pallant House on 
Tuesday 2 November 2021 at 9.30 am 

 
 

Members Present Mrs E Lintill (Chairman), Mrs S Taylor (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr R Briscoe, Mr A Dignum, Mrs P Plant, Mr A Sutton and 
Mr P Wilding 
 

Members Absent   
 

In attendance by invitation   
 

Officers Present  Mr T Ayling (Divisional Manager for Planning Policy), 
Mr N Bennett (Divisional Manager for Democratic 
Services), Ms M Burgoyne (Economic Development 
Manager), Ms P Bushby (Divisional Manager for 
Communities), Mr M Catlow (Group Accountant 
(Technical and Exchequer)), Mr A Frost (Director of 
Planning and Environment), Mr L Foord (Divisional 
Manager for Communications, Licensing & Events), 
Miss L Higenbottam (Democratic Services Manager), 
Mr D Hyland (Community and Partnerships Support 
Manager), Mrs J Hotchkiss (Director of Growth and 
Place), Mr J Mildred (Divisional Manager for Corporate 
Services), Mrs L Rudziak (Director of Housing and 
Communities), Mrs D Shepherd (Chief Executive) and 
Mr J Ward (Director of Corporate Services) 

  
71    Chair's Announcements  

 
Cllr Lintill welcomed everyone to the meeting and read the fire evacuation 
procedure. She explained that item 12 had been deferred to the December Cabinet 
meeting in order to allow more information to come forward. One late item had been 
accepted regarding the treatment of War Pensions in the calculation of Housing 
Benefit. The item would be taken later in the agenda under ‘late items’.  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

72    Approval of Minutes  
 
RESOLVED 

 
That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 5 October 2021 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



73    Declarations of Interests  
 
The following declarations of interest were made: 
 

 Cllr Dignum declared a prejudicial interest in relation to agenda item 8 as a 
member of the Chichester City Council. He did not speak or vote on the item.  

 Cllr Dignum also declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 13 as 
a member of Chichester City Council. He did not speak on this item either.  

  
 

74    Public Question Time  
 
The following public questions were received (responses are indicated in italics): 
 
Question from Ann Stewart (read by Democratic Services): 
 
The Tyndall Centre is a world renown organisation of British Universities where 
climate scientists of relevant disciplines work with policy makers. One of their 
resources is a database of the carbon budgets of UK cities. Their conclusions for 
Chichester are that to stay within the 1.50C of the Paris climate agreement 
Chichester has a “ maximum cumulative carbon dioxide emissions budget of 4.7 
million tonnes (MtCO2) for the period of 2020 to 2100.”   
 
https://carbonbudget.manchester.ac.uk/reports/E07000225/  
  
If we continue to emit carbon dioxide at the 2017 rate, we will have used up our 
entire budget for the century by 2027/2028.   
   
This council report states that by 2023 the additional flights proposed at Gatwick will 
result in an additional 1.51 million tonnes of CO2 . This is over a quarter of our 
carbon budget for this century. Will the council take this into consideration when 
discussing this report.  
 
Answer from Cllr Taylor: 
 
In 2019 the requirement for the UK to achieve net zero emissions by 2050 (with all 
emissions by that date needing to be balanced by greenhouse gas removals) 
became law. In April 2021, the Government announced it would accept the advice of 
its expert climate advisory body, the CCC, that the sixth carbon budget (covering 
years 2033-37) should deliver a 78% reduction in emissions below 1990 levels and, 
for the first time, should include international aviation and shipping emissions. In 
July 21, the Government published a draft plan to put aviation on a pathway to net 
zero by 2050 in its consultation document Jet zero: Our strategy for net zero 
aviation. Whilst the proposals do not explicitly express support for airport expansion, 
they focus on technology measures to achieve emissions reductions. 
 
The decisions around regional airport expansion is a central government issue due 
to the legally binding climate targets.  In addition major infrastructure projects such 
as Gatwick or Heathrow expansion will go through public consultation and/or public 
inquiry as part of the nationally prescribed development consent order process. 

Page 2

https://carbonbudget.manchester.ac.uk/reports/E07000225/


 
Currently, there is no UK-wide policy for reducing aviation emissions overall, 
although ministers are due to announce a strategy for cutting transport emissions.  
The levers for disincentivising air travel lie with central government. This is 
illustrated by the latest Budget. The Chancellor said that most emissions come from 
international rather than domestic aviation, so the Government was introducing a 
new band of Air Passenger Duty covering flights of over 5,500 miles so that those 
who fly furthest will pay the most. However, flights between airports in England, 
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland will be subject to a new lower rate of Air 
Passenger Duty from 2023. 
 
I can confirm that the Council will take carbon reduction targets into account in 
considering its response to this consultation and would add that CDC is playing a 
role through its on-going behaviour change campaign which encourages the use of 
personal carbon calculators so that people can better understand their carbon 
footprints and identify areas for change such as flying less. 
 
As a point of detail, the Council’s report does not mention the date 2023. Paragraph 
3.9 refers to 2032 which is the date taken from the Environmental Impact 
Assessment prepared on behalf of the airport operator.   
 
Question from Sally Pavey, Chair of CAGNE: 
 
A second runway flies in the face of the climate emergency we are all facing.  
Aviation has no alternative currently to being able to fly lots of people thousands of 
miles without using fossil fuel – commercial green fuels and technology are years 
away.  Even Crawley Borough Council is no longer focusing on Gatwick for jobs but 
greener more sustainable industries. 
 
How can this council justify this draft response in favour a new runway at Gatwick 
Airport, but then Chichester is not local to the airport as such no workers (if any jobs 
are created as Gatwick will take 6-7 years to recover and automation remove many 
jobs) should be coming from your area; your area may or may not see the vast 
increases of noisy aircraft overhead (285-326,000 a year);  a second runway alone 
will add more than 1 million tonnes of extra carbon every year plus greenhouse 
gases and particles; and how can this draft response talk about Gatwick paying for 
affordable housing when there is no land to build on as Gatwick safeguard land for a 
3rd runway and a 3 bedroom house costs far more than most workers can afford? 
 
How can this council support the building of a new runway when I quote – 'as a 
council we are committed to working with you to tackle climate change. The 
opportunity to avoid dangerous levels of global warming is closing and action is 
required swiftly at all levels from the international to the individual. In making its 
declaration of a climate emergency in July 2019, the council announced its 
commitment to taking urgent action and asking others - residents, businesses, 
partner organisations, and the Government’? 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



Answer from Cllr Taylor: 
 
The Council is not supporting the building of a new runway. The proposals are for 
the utilisation of the existing standby runway to be used by smaller aircraft. 
 
The proposals are for the building of new associated airport infrastructure to the 
existing terminal buildings which will result in improvements to the road 
infrastructure around the airport, together with new hotels.  
 
The council supports the economic role that the airport plays within the wider region 
and the positive contribution it makes to Chichester District. The new physical 
infrastructure according to the documentation provided by Gatwick is proposed to 
reach net zero emissions by 2040. 
 
The council has drawn attention in its response that the consultation documents do 
not set out the full picture regarding carbon emissions, which is in the airport’s 
Environmental Impact Assessment – that the proposals will when everything is 
taken into account result in an increase in carbon emissions as a result of the extra 
aircraft flights which use carbon fuel, until such a time as they can be fuelled by a 
renewable resource. 
 
Cllr Lintill invited a supplementary question from Sally Pavey. The question related 
to how the scrubbing of tyres would mitigate the construction of a new runway. Cllr 
Taylor invited Mr Frost to respond. Mr Frost explained that the council is a consultee 
not the decision maker in the process. Cllr Lintill added that she would be proposing 
an amended recommendation to agenda item 11 to recommend that the 
Development Plan and Infrastructure Panel (DPIP) consider a response in order to 
enable all members the opportunity for input.  
 
Question from George Hibberd: 
 
I have a very important question to pose to the council for their meeting on Tuesday 
2nd November regarding the plans to expand Gatwick’s Northern Runway. 
  
“Sir David King, the UK’s former Chief Science Advisor, has said that we have just 5 
to regenerate planet Earth and what we do in the following 3-4 years will determine 
the future of humanity.  
  
As a pilot who works with easyJet and is a member of the British Airline Pilots 
Association Environmental Study Group, I am acutely aware of my industry’s 
massively damaging impact on our life support systems, but also our lack of action 
and greenwashing campaigns to not only continue flying, but to expand our pollutive 
industry.  
  
The Intergovernmental Panel for Climate Change, the International Energy Agency 
and the government’s own Climate Change Committee have said that we MUST 
take action to immediately reduce demand and therefore emissions in aviation to 
avert the worst effects of the climate crisis.  
  

Page 4



People in the global south are already dying. The natural world is seeing the sixth 
mass extinction of species. When battery and hydrogen aircraft are decades away, 
when Sustainable Aviation Fuels are not actually sustainable and won’t be price-
competitive also for decades, when biofuels are going to cause yet more 
deforestation and carbon offsets are proven to be almost totally ineffective, what 
right does Gatwick have to lie to the public about its eco-credentials and expand an 
already pollutive industry plunging my future and many others’ presents into chaos?” 
 
Answer from Cllr Taylor: 
 
The council has drawn attention in its response that the consultation documents do 
not set out the full picture regarding carbon emissions, which is in the airport’s 
Environmental Impact Assessment – that the proposals will when everything is 
taken into account result in an increase in carbon emissions as a result of the extra 
aircraft flights which use carbon fuel, until such a time as they can be fuelled by a 
renewable resource. 
 
In its draft answer to consultation question Q12, the council has stated: 
 
The situation described in question 12 does not provide the whole picture. It refers 
only to construction and the operation of buildings, which represents only a tiny 
fraction of the true greenhouse gas emissions. 
The increase in carbon as a result of the additional flights is equivalent to twice 
Chichester District’s whole emissions. It is possible to argue, as the Environmental 
Impact Assessment report does, that such an increase does not compromise the UK 
target, but only because it is less than 1% of UK total emissions. It is however, still a 
huge increase. 
Carbon-offsetting is not a preferred strategy, and should only be a small part of the 
plan once all other options have been exhausted. The preferred strategy would be 
improvements in technology for the aircraft, and maximising public transport 
journeys to and from the airport via non-carbon modes of transport. Water-efficiency 
and reduction of waste are other areas that need to be considered. There is little 
mention of creation of on-site renewable energy sources to supply the new buildings 
at the airport and there does appear to be land available within the airports 
ownership to explore this, for example ground source heat pumps and water source 
heat pumps. 
 
Cllr Lintill invited a supplementary question from George Hibberd. The question 
related to whether councillors would use their powers to lobby West Sussex County 
Council and Central Government on the Green Deal and whether councillors would 
commit to read the ‘Possible’ report regarding green solutions providing more jobs. 
Cllr Taylor reiterated that the discussion would be taken to DPIP. 
 

75    Adoption of Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Policy review and Adoption of 
Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy  
 
Cllr Sutton introduced the item. 
 
Cllr Taylor asked how many applications had been received for outside hospitality 
seating. Mr Foord estimated that there were between 30 and 40 active applications. 

Page 5



He explained that the council is currently not charging for the service in order to 
support the local businesses.  
 
Post Meeting Note: 61 cases have been handled resulting in 48 applications of 
which 29 are issued, a further 13 to be issued and the remainder awaiting 
information/detail from potential applicants 
 
In a vote the following recommendation to Council was agreed: 
 
RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 

 
That the Statement of Licensing Policy 2022-2027 (Licensing Act 2003) at Appendix 
1, and the Statement of Policy 2022-2025 (Gambling Act 2005) at Appendix 2, be 
approved and referred to Council for adoption and publication.  
  

76    Financial Strategy and Plan 2022-23 to 2026-27  
 
Cllr Wilding introduced the item. 
 
Mr Ward was then invited to provide an update following the Governments Spending 
Review announcement for 2021 which covers a three year period. He explained that 
the announcement included a £4.8 billion increase in grant funding over the three 
years although the distribution is yet to be announced. It also remains unclear 
whether the council will be permitted to go beyond a 2% increase in Council Tax. He 
outlined the freeze to the business rates multiplier for small businesses for next 
year. There will also be a 50% discount for hospitality and leisure activities which the 
council will be recompensed for. Mr Ward wished to draw attention to the anticipated 
inflation rate for next year of 4%. He explained that the council’s Fees and Charges 
Policy uses the inflation rates set out in the report and therefore the possibility of a 
1% variation should be noted. Cllr Lintill requested the revisions be included in the 
papers for November Full Council.  
 
Cllr Dignum  wished to draw attention to the increasing pressure for higher pay, the 
increase in fuel costs and the parking income which although it had increased did 
not match like for like with pre-pandemic years.  
 
Cllr Plant asked that members give consideration to the funding arrangements for 
the food collection service. She also wished to draw attention to section d on page 
99 of the agenda pack regarding the pension lock.  
 
In a vote the following recommendations to Council were agreed: 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 

 
a) The key financial principles and actions set out in appendix 1 of the 5 year 

Financial Strategy report be approved. 
b) That having considered the recommendations of the Corporate Governance 

and Audit Committee, the Minimum Level of Reserves remains set at £4m. 

Page 6



c) That the current 5 year Financial Model detailed in appendix 2 (Part 2) and 
the Resources Statement in appendix 3 to the Financial Strategy report be 
noted. 

 
77    Funding for Voluntary Action Arun and Chichester  

 
Cllr Briscoe introduced the item. 
 
Cllr Lintill asked which other organisations provide funding support. Mr Hyland 
explained that Arun District Council, West Sussex County Council, Littlehampton 
Town Council and a number of parish councils all provide varying levels of funding 
support.  
 
In a vote the following recommendations to Council were agreed: 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

 
1. That the Cabinet recommends to Council the continuation of funding to 

Voluntary Action Arun and Chichester for the provision of infrastructure 
support to the voluntary and community groups and charities in Chichester 
District as set out in para 5.2 of the report.  

2. That the Cabinet delegates authority to the Director of Housing and 
Communities, following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Community 
Services, to agree a service specification and signing of a three-year funding 
agreement and delegates to the Grants and Concessions Panel the annual 
monitoring of performance.  

  
78    New Homes Bonus (Parish Allocations) Scheme application from Chichester 

City Council  
 
Further to his declaration Cllr Dignum did not participate in the item.  
 
Cllr Briscoe introduced the item. 
 
Cllr Lintill requested clarification on the upper limit of New Homes Bonus 
applications following comment from the Chichester City Council Finance 
Committee who had been in touch to query grants given over £25,000. Mr Hyland 
confirmed that bids to the scheme are not limited to that figure; the Cabinet Member 
for Community Services and Culture in consultation with the Grants and 
Concessions Panel can approve up to £25,000, any applications over that level are 
recommended to Cabinet for determination. Cllr Lintill added that the request had 
also asked that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider the New Homes 
Bonus grants process. She explained that she would ensure the Chair of Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Cllr Apel was made aware.  
 
In a vote the following resolution was agreed: 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



RESOLVED 

 
The Grants and Concessions Panel recommendation of the allocation of £43,000 to 
Chichester City Council in favour of Chichester Runners and Athletics Club and their 
proposal for a permanent running track at Chichester College be approved. 
 

79    2021-22 Treasury Management Half-Yearly Update Report  
 
Cllr Wilding introduced the item. 
 
Cllr Dignum commented on the investments made in property which had remained 
good investments.  
 
Cllr Briscoe asked for further information on ethical investments. Cllr Wilding 
explained that £3 million investments were being made to ethical funds which 
provide approximately 3% return.  
 
Mr Catlow added that any investments the council wishes to make that are non-
compliant have to be justified and then agreed by the S151 Officer. He confirmed 
that no current investments had been made this way.  
 
Cllr Briscoe wished to thank Mr Catlow and his team for their good work.  
 
RESOLVED 

 
That the Cabinet has duly considered the Treasury activity summarised in the 
report. 
 

80    Business Rates Pool High Street Project  
 
Cllr Dignum introduced the item. 
 
Cllr Sutton wished to encourage the other members of the Cabinet to attend the 
market on Sunday. He explained that the difference in the market was its link with 
the college and the new businesses it showcases.  
 
In a vote the following resolutions were agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 

 
1. That Cabinet agrees the release of the Business Rates Pool monies totalling 

£70,000 for spend on a ‘high street feasibility project’. 
2. That Cabinet agrees to work commencing on the feasibility study for the 

project as set out in section 4 of the report, using the total fund allocated to 
this Council. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



81    Consultation on bringing Gatwick Airport Northern Runway into use 
alongside the main runway  
 
Cllr Lintill explained that she did not intend to the debate the item but as she had 
referred to during Public Question Time she wished to propose a revised 
recommendation. 
 
The following recommendation was seconded by Cllr Taylor and agreed by vote: 
 
RESOLVED 

 
That Cabinet delegates authority to the Cabinet Member for Planning Services to 
finalise the Council’s response to the consultation questions as set out in Appendix 
2 to this report regarding bringing the Gatwick Airport northern runway into use 
alongside the main runway, having taken into account the comments of the 
Development Plan and Infrastructure Panel. 
 

82    Engagement Response to National Highways A259 Chichester to Emsworth 
Cycling and Walking Route  
 
This item was deferred to the December meeting. 
 

83    Future Funding for Community Wardens  
 
Cllr Briscoe introduced the item. Mrs Bushby added that the service is well 
respected within the community.  
 
Cllr Taylor requested clarification of whether the consultation would include the 
whole district or those areas where the service is currently provided. Mrs Bushby 
explained that it is currently for those who have a Community Warden. She 
confirmed that there has to be a need rather than a want for a Community Warden.  
 
Cllr Lintill asked the following questions on behalf of Cllr Apel: 
 

1. Whether the current year’s service would remain as it is? 
2. Whether the review in 2022/23 would mean any changes be implemented in 

2023/24? 
3. If any parish does not pay for their proportion would it affect the service as a 

whole? 
 
Mrs Bushby in answering question one explained that subject to the Cabinet’s 
decision to support the recommendation on the report the current year’s service 
would remain as it is. With regard to question two the timeline indicated is correct. 
With regard to question three the results of the review as a whole are required 
before a funding model can be agreed.  
 
In a vote the following resolution was agreed: 
 
 
 

Page 9



RESOLVED 

 
That Cabinet agrees to continue to fund 50% of the Community Warden Service and 
100% of the Senior Community Warden post for 1 year (as set out in section 7 
below), subject to match funding being secured from partners.  
2. That a review of the service and funding is undertaken during 2022 as set out in 
para 4.2 below.  
  

84    Priory Park Task and Finish Group  
 
Cllr Sutton introduced the item including an amendment to the recommendations 
which was agreed below.  
 
In a vote the following resolutions were agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 

 
1. That Cabinet agree to the setting up of a Priory Park Task and Finish Group 

to address the motion passed by the September Council and to delegate the 
appointments to that Task and Finish group to Cllr Sutton. 

2. That Cabinet agree the Terms of Reference of the Task and Finish Group as 
set out at Appendix B, with the deletion of the words [including the request for 
information received from the City Council.] from the scope. 

 
85    Late Items  

 
One late item had been accepted regarding the treatment of War Pensions in the 
calculation of Housing Benefit.  
 

86    Treatment of War Pensions in the calculation of Housing Benefit  
 
Cllr Wilding introduced the item. Mrs Rodgers added that in 2014 the Council had 
signed up to the Armed Forces Covenant which the resolution would support.  
 
In a vote the following resolution was agreed 
 
RESOLVED 

 
That the content of the report be noted and that it be determined that war pensions 
continue to be fully disregarded as a source of income by the Council when 
assessing claims for Housing Benefit. 
 

87    Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
Cllr Lintill proposed and read the part II resolution in relation to agenda item 17. This 
was seconded by Cllr Taylor. The Cabinet then voted to go into part II.  
 
 
 
 

Page 10



RESOLVED  

 
That with regard to agenda item 17 the public including the press should be 
excluded from the meeting on the grounds of exemption in Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 namely Paragraph 3 (Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information)) and because, in all the circumstances of the case, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption of that information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 
 

88    Funding for a staff pool car pilot  
 
Cllr Wilding introduced the item. He then invited Mr Mildred to explain how the 
location of the pilot would work.  
 
Mr Mildred then responded to questions and comments from Cllr Lintill, Cllr Sutton 
and Cllr Plant.  
 
In a vote the following resolution was agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 

 
That Cabinet agrees the resolutions as set out in sections 2.1 and 2.2 of the report. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 11.25 am  
 
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN 

  
Date: 

 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Chichester District Council 

THE CABINET         December 2021 

Determination of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2022-2023 

1. Contacts 

Report Author: 
Marlene Rogers Benefits & Systems Manager 
Tel: 01243 534644 E-mail: mrogers@chichester.gov.uk 

 
Cabinet Member: 
Cllr Peter Wilding, Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate Services, Revenues and 
Benefits    
Tel: 01428 642464 E-mail: pwilding@chichester.gov.uk  
 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. That Cabinet recommend that the proposed Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme for 2022-2023 be approved by full Council. 

2.2. That Cabinet delegate approval for mid-year changes in the Scheme, 
where it is deemed appropriate to the Director for Housing & Communities 
following consultation with the Director of Corporate Services and Cabinet 
Member for Finance, Corporate Services and Revenues and Benefits. 

3. Background 

3.1. The Welfare Reform Act and Local Government Finance Acts of 2012 abolished 
the national council tax benefit (CTB) scheme and put in place from 1 April 2013 
a framework for local authorities to create their own local council tax reduction 
(CTR) schemes. 

3.2. The Government has laid down the process by which a local CTR scheme 
should be put in place and renewed each year. In accordance with that process 
officers have published a draft scheme. This scheme must be approved by the 
Council before 11th March 2022 or the previous year’s scheme will continue to 
have effect. 

3.3. The cost of the scheme is shared between all precepting authorities. This 
Council’s share is approximately 9% of the total scheme cost, with the rest being 
funded by Sussex Police, West Sussex County Council and the Parish Councils. 

3.4. Since the introduction of local schemes, the Council has aimed to support those 
that are financially vulnerable in its communities by maintaining levels of 
support to claimants in comparison with the national means tested Council Tax 
Benefit scheme that it replaced. Across the country different approaches have 
been adopted, by 2018/19 90% of LA’s had made changes to their schemes the 
majority of these aimed at reducing the level of support. 

 
3.5. In 2018/19 a banded scheme for CTR applicants in receipt of Universal Credit 

(UC) was introduced. The intention was to simplify the administration of CTR for 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:mrogers@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:pwilding@chichester.gov.uk


these customers, rather than to reduce the level of support provided. All banded 
schemes have winners and losers, and any adverse effects of the scheme on 
these applicants have been mitigated by the availability of a discretionary award 
that can be made in circumstances where by comparison to the previous means 
tested scheme applicant is disadvantaged by the UC banded scheme and they 
are financially vulnerable. These awards are made on a case by case basis and 
the availability is promoted by Revenues & Benefits staff when dealing with 
individual cases.    

 
4. Outcomes Achieved 

4.1. The delivery of a scheme that is cost effective to administer while supporting 
those in the community that require financial assistance in the form of a 
reduction in their council tax.  

4.2. As in previous years the schemes performance will be monitored in year with a 
view to informing the succeeding year’s scheme.  

5. Proposal 

5.1. The proposed CTR scheme for 2022-2023 is unchanged from last year’s 
scheme except for the below. These exceptions are intended to maintain levels 
of entitlement to recipients of this support across the District.  

(a) Any changes that occur in the Housing Benefit (HB) scheme will be 
transferred across to the 2022-2023 scheme, including uprated premiums, 
living allowances and non-dependant deductions (for non-UC claimant’s). 
These are supplied by the Department for Work and Pensions and are 
published before the end of the financial year.   

(b) For the UC banded scheme this also includes any appropriate changes in 
UC rates, including emergency measures as described below.  

(c) Emergency measures introduced nationally such as the response to the 
ongoing Coronavirus pandemic. It is proposed to make this process simpler 
by proposing delegated powers be given to the Director for Housing and 
Communities and the Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate Services, 
Revenues and Benefits to change the scheme mid-year in the event this is 
required. This proposal includes both emergency measures and budgetary 
announcements made by Government where officers deem that the scheme 
needs to change mid-year in order to fulfil the intention of central 
Government. It is recommended that any decision be taken in respect of 
these changes be in consultation with the Section 151 Officer.  

6. Alternatives Considered 

Officers have considered whether any changes to the scheme are required from an 
administrative perspective and consulted the Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Corporate Services and Revenues and Benefits, the Director of Housing and 
Communities and the Director of Corporate Services to establish whether any 
changes were required in terms of support levels, members were advised of this. All 
parties agreed that no changes to the level of support were required, and that 
keeping a stable level of support for those in receiving this reduction was important 

Page 14



to ensure that financial impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic were mitigated as far as 
possible, whilst not increasing the overall expenditure of the scheme.  

7. Resource and legal implications 

7.1. The predicted spend on CTR when tax base was set in December 2020 for 
2021-2022 was £8,710,932.25. The 2021-22 cost based on expenditure to date 
is estimated to be £7,792,578.97 (as at the end of October 2021). This 
compares with £7,781,613.30 actual CTR expenditure for 2019-20, against a tax 
base estimate of £7,343,176.87.  

7.2. Future CTR expenditure is difficult to predict, particularly during the ongoing 
COVID-19 pandemic. Prior to the pandemic CTR caseloads were decreasing, 
this trend changed during the pandemic and we experienced an increased 
demand for CTR. This has been stabilised, partly due to the emergency COVID 
measures implemented by the Government, such as the extension to the 
furlough scheme and the Self-Employed Income Support Scheme (SEISS). 
These measures ended on the 30th September and the impact of this is still 
unknown. There is a risk that if the economy does not bounce back quickly, and 
unemployment rises that the cost of the CTR scheme could rise.     

7.3. The changes to Universal Credit (UC) have had an impact on household 
incomes. The reduction in the UC taper rate is predicted to bring an additional 
400,000 families into the benefits system next year. Around 75% of the 4.4 
million households on UC will be worse off as a result of the end to the UC uplift, 
despite the change in the taper rate, as not all UC households are in 
employment. The CTR reduction scheme for those on UC is assessed based on 
income bands. Hardship is mitigated by the availability of Discretionary support; 
however, this is to some extent reliant on the customer coming forward to 
discuss arrears. During COVID-19 pandemic we have resourced additional staff 
to identify some of these households and this is work that we strive continue. 
However, this does mean that there is the potential for the scheme to cost more, 
if more people on UC apply and more of those people apply for additional 
support. Regular monitoring takes place monthly to inform future schemes.  

8. Consultation 
 
8.1. As no changes to the design of the scheme have been made Officers decided in 

consultation with Directors of Corporate Services and Housing & Communities 
that formal consultation was not required. This approach is supported by advice 
issued by Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG).  

9. Community Impact and Corporate Risks  

9.1. The corporate risk to the authority is setting a CTR scheme which is 
unaffordable. This risk is reduced by setting a scheme which is broadly in line 
with the existing one so expenditure can be predicted. Should there be a 
sustained downturn in the economy there is a risk that the scheme will cost 
more than estimated.  

9.2. The community impact is reduced by keeping the calculation of entitlement as 
close to the previous CTB scheme as possible.  

Page 15



10. Other Implications  

 Yes No 

Crime & Disorder  No 

Climate Change and Biodiversity   No 

Human Rights and Equality Impact  No 

Safeguarding and Early Help   No 

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR 
 

 No 

 
 
11. Appendices 

 
11.1 Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2022 - 2023 

Page 16



 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 17



 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme April 2022 to March 2023 Page  
 Introduction  1 

1.0 Reductions for different classes 2 

2.0 Excluded groups  4 

3.0 Who can claim council tax reduction 5 

4.0 How to apply for council tax reduction  6 

5.0 The calculation of a council tax reduction  6 

6.0 When entitlement begins 11 

7.0 Extended payments 12 

8.0 Notification of decisions 12 

9.0 Payment of council tax reduction 12 

10.0 Changes of circumstance 12 

11.0 Evidence & required information  14 

12.0 Appeals 15 

13.0 Fraud 15 

14.0 Work incentives 16 

15.0 Changes to the scheme 16 

 Appendices  

 Appendix 1 The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed 
Requirements)(England) Regulations 2012 

17 

 Appendix 2 The Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 17 

 Appendix 3 Discretionary CTR Policy  18 

Page 18



 1  
 

Introduction  

 

Since April 2013 all Council Tax billing authorities in England are required to have a 

scheme to help people on low incomes in meeting the cost of their Council Tax. This 

document describes the Council Tax Reduction (CTR) scheme for Chichester District 

Council for the period 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023.  

The Government will continue to specify how pensioner claims are to be assessed. 

Pensioner claims will continue to be calculated in accordance with The Council Tax 

Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements)(England) Regulations 2012 (as 

amended), referred to in this scheme as the Prescribed Requirements Regulations.   

The CTR scheme will continue to protect claimants in all classes that are in receipt of 

war widows, war widowers or war disablement pensions. As in previous years these 

incomes will be disregarded in full when calculating entitlement to a reduction.  

It is proposed for the tenth year the local CTR scheme (2022 - 2023) remains 

unchanged from the 2021- 2022 scheme in terms of the calculation rules and level of 

support offered to bill payers. However any changes to the Housing Benefit 

Regulations will be reflected in the scheme when they become available later in the 

year. Furthermore changes may be made in year where it is deemed appropriate in 

consultation and agreement with the Director for Housing & Communities and the 

Cabinet Member for Housing, Revenues & Benefits.  

This scheme is applicable from the 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022, although the 

Council may choose to extend it further.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 2  
 

 

1.0 Reduction for different classes 
 

1.1 CTR schemes must state the classes of person who are to be entitled to a 

reduction under the scheme and the reduction to which persons in each class are 

entitled. Chichester District Council will have six classes of person: three classes 

for people considered to be of pension age and three classes for those of working 

age.  

 

1.2 Pensioners  

The Prescribed Requirements Regulations define who is considered to be a 

pensioner and who is not. Claimants considered to be pensioners will fall into one 

of three pensioner classes as detailed below. The level of CTR to which they will 

be entitled is then calculated in accordance with the Prescribed Requirements 

Regulations.  

 Class A: Pensioners whose income is less than the applicable amount.  

 Class B: Pensioners whose income is greater than the applicable amount.  

 Class C: Alternative maximum council tax reduction.  

The Prescribed Requirements Regulations will be used to determine both the 

level of CTR that is awarded and how the CTR is calculated for each of these 

classes, with the exception of the treatment of war pensioners. The national CTB 

scheme allowed Councils to take local decisions regarding the extent to which 

war widows/widowers and war disablement pensions are taken into account 

when calculating entitlement. The Council will continue to completely disregard 

these pensions when calculating a claimant’s income.  

1.3 Working Age  

Persons who are resident in Great Britain (or treated as resident), and have not 

yet reached state pension credit age, fall into one of three working age classes, 

which are described below. The Prescribed Requirements Regulations determine 

matters that must be included in CTR schemes for people of working age. 

However these Regulations do not specify the level of support for this group of 

people or how CTR awards must be calculated. Entitlement for these classes will 

be calculated in accordance with these scheme rules. As with pensioner claims 

the local CTR scheme will continue to fully disregard war widows/widowers and 

war disablement pensions in the calculation of entitlement to CTR.  

 

 

Page 20



 3  
 

 

1.4 Working Age Class D  

The claimant must  

 Be a person who has not yet attained the qualifying age for state pension 

credit.  

 Be a person whose partner has not yet attained the qualifying age for state 

pension credit, except where the claimant is in receipt of income support, 

income based job seekers allowance or income based employment and 

support allowance. 

 Be liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling in which they are 

resident.  

 Is not deemed to be absent from the dwelling (see 3.4).  

 Be a person in receipt of income support; income based job seekers 

allowance; income related employment and support allowance; maximum 

award of UC or be a person whose income is below their living allowance 

as calculated in the means test that applies to those in Working Age Class 

E.  

 Not have capital in excess of £16,000.  

 Have made an application for CTR and provided the necessary 

information and evidence to support that application.  

 Not be a member of a prescribed group excluded from support, such as a 

person from abroad.  

 

1.5 Working Age Class E 

The Claimant must  

 Be a person who has not yet attained the qualifying age for state pension 

credit 

 Be a person whose partner has not yet attained the qualifying age for state 

pension credit.  

 Be liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling in which they are 

resident.  

 Is not deemed to be absent from the dwelling.  

 Be a person not in Working Age Class D and whose income is more that 

their applicable amount.  

 Not have capital in excess of £16,000. 

 Have made an application for CTR and provided the necessary 

information to support that application.  

Page 21



 4  
 

 Not be a member of a prescribed group exempted from support such as a 

person from abroad.  

 

1.6 Working Age Class F  

The claimant must  

 Be a person who has not yet attained the qualifying age for state pension 

credit. 

 Be a person whose partner has not yet attained the qualifying age for state 

pension credit, except where the claimant is in receipt of UC.  

 Be liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling in which they are 

resident for any week where the assessed income and household 

membership falls within one of the income bands specified by the scheme 

rules.  

 Is not deemed to be absent from the dwelling.  

 Not have capital in excess of £16,000.  

 Have been assessed by the DWP for UC, or would have been awarded 

UC other than for any amendments, pre-payments, sanctions or waiting 

days.  

 

2.0 Excluded Groups  
 

2.1 Persons from abroad 

The Prescribed Requirements Regulations define those persons excluded 

from CTR.  

The exceptions to exclusions for persons from abroad will also remain and be 

prescribed by the Secretary of State. This will allow those who have 

recognised refugee status, humanitarian protection, discretionary leave or 

exceptional leave to remain granted outside the immigration rules and who 

are exempt from the habitual residency test to apply for CTR as long as their 

status has not been revoked.  

2.2 Students  

Persons who are full time students will be excluded from entitlement to CTR, 

except for those entitled to Income Support, UC or Employment and Support 

Allowance (income related). Part time students and claimants who have a 

partner who is a student may apply. The Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 

Page 22



 5  
 

Part 7 defines which are excluded and how student income is assessed for 

those students who are entitled to support.  

 

3.0 Who can claim council tax reduction  

 

3.1 CTR may be claimed only where the claimant is resident in and liable to pay 

council tax for a property. Where there is more than one resident the liable 

person is the one with the greatest legal interest in the dwelling.  

3.2 When considering who is liable the Council will have regard to all the 

residents of a property. The liable person or persons will then be determined 

using the hierarchy of liability as set out in 3.3 below. Where more than one 

person is considered to be liable for council tax (other than a couple) CTR will 

be based on their proportion of the charge as determined by the Council (see 

figure 1 below).  

Figure 1: Calculation of proportion of council tax liability  
 
Claimant A shares a property with a friend. They rent the property from a non-
resident private landlord and each pay half the rent.  
 
Claimant A’s CTR would be based on 50% of the council tax charge.  

 

3.3 Hierarchy of council tax liability 

 The person liable to pay the bill is normally the person or persons who reside 

in the dwelling as their sole or main home and who fits the description nearest 

the top of the following list:  

 Residents who have a freehold interest in the property i.e. owner 

occupiers 

 Residents who have a leasehold interest in the property i.e. 

leaseholders 

 Residents who are statutory or secure tenants i.e. rent payers  

 Residents who have a contractual licence to occupy the property 

i.e. occupants of tied cottages 

 Residents with no legal interest in the property 

3.4 Persons who are temporarily absent from the dwelling may, in some 

circumstances, continue to be eligible for CTR in accordance with the 

Prescribed Requirements Regulations.  

 

Page 23



 6  
 

 

 

 

4.0 How to apply for a council tax reduction  
 

4.1 Applications for CTR will be made online, via a form available from the 

Council’s website. Where a claimant is unable to claim online they will be 

offered support to do so by appointment with an officer from the Council, or in 

exceptional circumstances asked to make a claim by telephone by 

appointment.   

4.2 The Council may decide to accept applications from vulnerable people in an 

alternative format where the circumstances require it, particularly where a 

third party is involved such as the Department for Work and Pensions, Social 

Services or Citizens advice. This will be at the Council’s discretion on a case 

by case basis.  

5.0 The calculation of a reduction  
 

5.1 CTR for pensioners will be calculated in accordance with the Prescribed 

Requirements Regulations. CTR for persons who fall into one of the three 

working age classes will be calculated as described below.  

5.2 Working Age Class D  

 A maximum reduction of 100% of the charge will be awarded for claimants in 

Working Age Class D. The charge is the annual council tax calculated pro rata 

where a claimant is not liable for a full financial year (and to exclude any 

brought forward arrears) minus any other discount which may apply such as 

single residency discount.  

 The CTR reduction will be subject to a deduction for any non-dependants in 

the household. Non-dependants are other adults living with the claimant on a 

non-commercial basis e.g. adult sons or daughters, relatives or friends.   

5.3  Working Age Class E  

 Claimants in Class E will be means tested for CTR. The amount of reduction 

will be calculated by comparing the claimant’s income to their calculated 

applicable amount and applying a 20% taper to the income above the 

applicable amount, referred to as excess income.  

 The amount of CTR will be subject to non-dependant deductions and 

dependant on the level of excess income.   

Page 24



 7  
 

5.4 Working Age Class F  

 The amount of CTR awarded for claimants in Class F will be determined in 

accordance with the income bands shown below. The level of household 

income will be determined in accordance with the award of UC and household 

composition. The amount of UC income will be that as determined by the 

DWP excluding any amount for housing costs.  

 

 

 

  

 

 The income for the purpose of calculating the income band is derived from the 

data supplied by the DWP. The calculation of income shall be as follows.  

 The net UC earnings of the claimant (and/or partner) as defined by the 

DWP prior to any earnings allowances, these earnings will be included 

net of tax, national insurance and pension contribution as assessed by 

the DWP*.  

 Plus the UC award, which means any payment of UC payable, or 

would have been awarded other than for any deductions, amendments, 

pre-payments, sanctions or payments to third parties.  

 Plus the UC other income, which is any other income defined by the 

DWP during the UC award.  

 Less any child care element included within the UC award.  

 Less any disregarded income, such as Personal Independence 

Payments and Attendance Allowance.  

 This equals the total income for the purpose of Class F reduction in this 

scheme.  

 This income will attract a level of discount as detailed above.  

  Single Household 
Couple 

Household 
1 Child 

Household 2 or more Children 

  Income Band Income Band Income Band Income Band 

Reduction From To From To From To From To 

100% £0.00 £100.00 £0.00 £150.00 £0.00 £200.00 £0.00 £250.00 

80% £100.01 £120.00 £150.01 £170.00 £200.01 £220.00 £250.01 £270.00 

60% £121.01 £140.00 £170.01 £190.00 £220.01 £240.00 £270.01 £290.00 

40% £141.01 £160.00 £190.01 £210.00 £240.01 £260.00 £290.01 £310.00 

20% £160.01 £180.00 £210.01 £230.00 £260.01 £280.00 £310.01 £330.00 

0% £180.01 + £230.01 + £280.01 + £330.01 + 

Page 25



 8  
 

*where the earned income includes a positive adjustment i.e. a rebate of tax an 
adjustment may be made to this figure.  
 
*where the figure provided by the DWP is considered to contain an obvious error 
the decision maker may revise the figure based on best evidence. 
 

5.5 Weekly eligible council tax  

CTR is calculated on a weekly basis therefore eligible council tax is calculated 

as follows 

 Start with the annual council tax due on the home 

 If the claimant is entitled to a disability reduction on their council tax bill, 

use the council tax figure after that reduction has been made 

 If the claimant is entitled to a discount, use the council tax figure after 

that discount has been made 

 Apportion the result if the claimant is a joint occupier (see figure 1 

above) 

 Convert the final figure (net council tax liability) to a weekly amount by 

diving by 365 (or 366 in a leap year) and multiplying by 7. For figures 

which do not relate to a whole year divide by the number of days 

covered by the charge and multiply by 7.  

5.6 The applicant’s household (applies to Classes D, E & F) 

For CTR consideration needs to be given to the applicants family and 

household. Different categories of people affect the assessment of CTR in 

different ways.  

The members of the applicant’s household include:  

 Family members 

o The applicant  

o Their partner(s) 

o Dependent children  

o Non dependants 

 Other people in the dwelling may include  

o Boarders and sub tenants 

o Joint occupiers, whether joint owners or joint tenants  

o Certain carers 

When determining household composition the Council’s decision maker uses 

the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006. Part 4 of these Regulations define 

membership of a family.   

5.7 CTR is reduced for each non-dependant normally living in the claimant’s 

household. non-dependants are other adults living in the claimant’s household 

Page 26



 9  
 

on a non-commercial basis, typically adult sons, adult daughters, other 

relatives or friends.  

 For this scheme a non-dependant is defined using the Housing Benefit 

Regulations 2006, specifically Regulation 3 Definition of non-dependant. 

However the terms used within this Regulation are defined elsewhere within 

the Housing Benefit Regulations, specifically Regulation 2 Interpretation. 

These Regulations determine when a non-dependant deduction should be 

applied and in what situations a deduction is not applied.  

 For working age Classes D & E the non-dependants income is calculated in 

accordance with the Prescribed Requirements Regulations, specifically Part 

3, Regulation 8, this Regulation also details the level of deduction that applies.  

 For working age Class F a flat rate non-dependant deduction of £3.90 per 

week will be made in respect of each non-dependants aged 18 or over 

normally residing in the claimant’s household that are in remunerative work.   

5.8 Excess income (applies to Classes D & E) 

 Excess income is income which exceeds the calculated applicable amount.  

 If the claimant (and their partner’s) income is less than their applicable 

amount they will be considered to be a person falling into Working Age Class 

D and therefore entitled to a maximum CTR reduction.  

 If a claimants income is more than their applicable amount the difference 

between their income and applicable amount will be referred to as excess 

income. A taper of 20% will be applied to this excess income. It is deemed 

that a person can afford to pay 20% of their excess income towards the cost 

of their council tax; therefore; 

 If 20% of the excess income figure is more than their eligible weekly council 

tax they will not be entitled to CTR 

 If 20% of excess income is less than the eligible council tax (net of any non-

dependant deduction) the CTR award will be the eligible council tax minus 

20% of excess income 

 Applicable amount and income are explained in more detail in the following 

sections of this scheme document. The Regulations and Schedules that apply 

to Housing Benefit are used to determine an individual’s applicable amount 

and income. Specifically Part 5 applicable amounts and schedule 3 and Part 6 

and Schedules 4, 5 and 6). The taper of 20% is the same that was used in the 

Council Tax Benefit Regulations 2006 that existed before the introduction of 

Local Schemes in 2013. This has been retained within the scheme for 

Page 27



 10  
 

Working Age Classes D & E to give claimants equivalent levels of support that 

existed prior to the introduction of local schemes.   

 

5.9 Applicable amount  

 The applicable amount is the figure used in calculating CTR to reflect the 

basic living needs of the claimant and household (excluding non-dependants). 

This is made up of personal allowances and additional amounts (premiums) 

for special circumstances, such as disability, if applicable.  

 For the purpose of CTR the applicable amount for working age Classes D & E 

is calculated using the same rules that apply for Housing Benefit that is the 

Housing Benefit Regulations 2006. Specifically Part 5 and Schedule 3 of 

these Regulations.  

 

5.10 Income and Capital (applies to Classes D & E) 

 All sources of income and capital of the claimant and partner are included in 

the means test. However some types of income are disregarded wholly or in 

part.  

 Examples of the types of income and capital to be included are;- 

 Earnings, pensions and tax credits 

 Other state benefits such as contribution based job seekers allowance, 

contribution based employment and support allowance and carer’s 

allowance 

 Savings and investments including property 

 Trust funds and other awards for personal injury 

The Council will decide what is treated as income and capital and for what 

period. These decisions will be made with reference to the Housing Benefit 

Regulations 2006. Specifically Part 6 and Schedules 4, 5 and 6 of these 

Regulations.  

5.11 Income (applies to Classes D & E) 

The income of a claimant and partner if applicable shall be calculated on a 

weekly basis by: 

 Calculating the amount which is likely to be the average weekly income 

 Adding any weekly tariff income from capital (see below) 

 Deducting any allowable child care costs  

 Deducting any earned income disregards which may apply 

Page 28



 11  
 

 

 

Tariff income is assessed as follows:  

 From the total amount of assessed capital deduct £6,000 

 Divide the remainder by 250 

If the result is not an exact multiple of £1, round the figure up to the next 

whole £1. This is the claimant’s weekly tariff income 

5.13 Minimum amount (applies to Classes D & E) 

A minimum amount of CTR will be applied for working age claims. The 

minimum amount applied will be £1.00 per week. For claimants determined to 

be entitled to CTR of less than £1.00 per week no CTR will be awarded.  

 

6.0       When entitlement begins  

 

6.1 As a general rule entitlement to CTR will begin on the Monday following the 

date the application is made or treated as being made as determined by the 

Council. The Council may choose to treat a claim as being made earlier 

where a claimant can demonstrate that they have made enquiries earlier via a 

third party such as the Department for Work and Pensions. The Prescribed 

Requirements Regulations (Schedule 8 Part 2) determine certain 

circumstances where a claim must be treated as made earlier.  

6.2 The earliest date that entitlement to CTR can begin is 1 month before an 

application is received. If a person has delayed making an application and 

they can demonstrate that they had continuous good cause for doing so, for 

example serious illness prevented them from making a claim, the Council will 

decide whether a claim may be backdated. The following rules will apply 

 Requests must be made in writing; this may be on the online 

application form or later via email or in writing. 

 CTR may not be backdated more than one month before the date of 

the written request.  

6.3 Where the Council decides to make a retrospective change affecting liability 

of a property and the claimant is able to demonstrate that they would have 

been entitled to a reduction had they been made liable and billed earlier, the 

Council will treat them as making a claim on the date that the liability 

commenced. Each case will be considered on its own merits.  

Page 29



 12  
 

 

 

7.0     Extended Payments 

 

 7.1 Extended payments of CTR are awarded to assist long term unemployed 

claimants and their partner when they start work. Extended payments can be 

awarded for a period of 4 weeks to any claimant who has been out of work for 

26 weeks who starts work, with the exception that the work will have a 

duration of 5 weeks or more.  

 A claimant is entitled to an extended payment if they satisfy the conditions set 

out in the Housing Benefit Regulations. Specifically (HB 2(1), 72, 73.  

 

8.0     Notification of decisions  
 

 In accordance with the Prescribed Requirements Regulations (Part 3) the 

claimant will be notified of the award of CTR within 14 days or as soon as 

possible. This will advise the claimant how much CTR has been awarded as a 

reduction against their council tax liability. As a minimum the notice will 

contain the following: 

 The amount of CTR that has been awarded 

 What the claimant needs to do if they want a further explanation of the 

decision or they think the decision is wrong 

 Details of the requirement to report a change of circumstances 

 

9.0     Payment of council tax reduction  

 

9.1 CTR is awarded as a reduction on the claimants council tax account. If there 

remains a residual liability it is billed as council tax due. If a claimant has 

made payments of council tax and therefore the award of CTR results in a 

credit on the account it will be processed as if it were excess council tax paid.  

 

10.0   Changes of circumstance 

 

10.1 If at any time between the making of the claim and a decision being made on 

it, or during an award of CTR, there is a change of circumstances which would 

Page 30



 13  
 

affect the calculation the claimant, their partner or representative, has a duty 

to notify the Council. The Prescribed Requirements Regulations (Schedule 8, 

Part 2, Regulation 9) defines a claimant’s duty to notify a change in their 

circumstances. This applies to both working age and pensioner claims.  

 Claimants must notify any changes in their circumstances which may affect 

the award of CTR and can notify the Council in advance if details of a future 

change are known.  

 The matters to be notified include, but are not limited to: 

 Changes in household composition 

 Changes in income 

 Changes in capital  

 Change of address 

10.2 Notification of a change should where possible be made online. This is the 

quickest and easiest way to report a change. Where a claimant is unable to 

access online services alternatives will be accepted, such as in writing 

(including via email) and over the telephone.  

10.3 Changes in circumstance which alter the amount of CTR paid shall take effect 

from the Monday following the date of change, even if it happened in the past. 

Annual uprating of DWP benefits will be effective from the 1st April in the 

financial year in which they occur.  

10.4 The Council will terminate CTR where entitlement ends, the claimant 

withdraws their claim, or if any of the following circumstances apply 

 There are doubts as to whether the conditions of entitlement to CTR 

are fulfilled and the claimant has failed to provide the relevant 

information requested by the Council. 

 The Council is considering whether to change the decision and the 

claimant has failed to provide the relevant information requested by the 

Council.  

 The Council considers that too much CTR is being paid and the 

claimant has failed to provide the relevant information requested by the 

Council.  

10.6 Generally a claim will end on the date of the change that resulted in the end of 

entitlement, or the date of withdrawal. Where a doubt arises over entitlement 

or where further information is requested the date of termination will be 

determined based on the information received. If no information is received 

the date of termination will be decided by the Council based on the 

information that it has available.  

Page 31



 14  
 

10.7 For changes that result in an increased amount of CTR awarded, the 

increased amount will reduce the amount of council tax owed. For changes in 

circumstance that reduce the amount of CTR awarded, the reduced amount 

will increase the amount of council tax that is owed. In both cases a revised 

bill will be issued detailing the amount of council tax that is due; applicants 

can request further statements explaining how the change has been 

calculated. The Council will follow its collection and recovery procedures 

when collecting any revised amounts due. However consideration may be 

given to those who are vulnerable and experiencing financial difficulty. 

Particularly where it has been determined that there is an increase in council 

tax due.  

10.8 For pensioner claims the effective date of change will be determined with 

reference to the Prescribed Requirements Regulations (Part 8).  

10.9 Where a decision is made in respect of a change in circumstances which 

results in an increase in the amount of council tax that is due, the Council may 

in exceptional circumstances decide not to recover it. Such decisions will be 

made with reference to the Council’s Discretionary Council Tax Reduction 

Policy which can be found in Appendix 3. This policy applies to both working 

age and pension age claims.  

 

11.0   Evidence & required information  

 

11.1 In accordance with the Prescribed Requirements Regulations (Schedule 8, 

Part 2, Regulation 7) an application for CTR must be supported by such 

information or evidence as is reasonably required to enable entitlement to be 

determined. The Council determines the level of evidence required to support 

a claim or a change of circumstances in accordance with its Risk Based 

Verification (RBV) Policy (see appendix 4).  

11.2 This Policy allows the Council to allocate a risk score to a CTR claim or a 

reported change of circumstance, this risk score then informs the standard of 

verification that is applied to that claim for the purpose of calculating 

entitlement.  

11.3 For all new claims evidence of the claimants (and any partner’s) national 

insurance number and identity must be provided as a minimum.  

 

 

 

Page 32



 15  
 

12.0   Appeals 

 

12.1 A claimant may, at any time request the Council to review their entitlement to 

CTR, or the amount of any reduction to CTR, outside of the provisions for 

appeals detailed below. Requests can be submitted by email or in writing. A 

written explanation will be sent within 14 days or as soon as possible.  

12.2 In accordance with the Prescribed Requirements Regulations (Schedule 7, 

Part 2) a claimant, or a person acting on their behalf, who is aggrieved by a 

decision made under the scheme may formally appeal against it. This appeal 

must be in writing to the Council and should state the grounds on which the 

appeal is being made.  

12.3 The Council will consider the appeal and notify the claimant in writing of the 

outcome, the reasons for the decision and any steps that have been taken to 

deal with the grievance. If the appellant remains dissatisfied, or a response 

has not been given within a period of two months from the date of the written 

appeal, the claimant may appeal directly to the Valuation Tribunal for 

England.  

12.4 Appeals against the decisions made using the Council’s Discretionary 

Reduction Policy will be considered with reference to the Policy, which can be 

found in Appendix 3 of this document.  

 

13.0   Fraud  

 

13.1 When a claimant makes an application for CTR they are required to sign a 

declaration as part of the application process. This requests a customer to 

declare that the information given on the form is correct and complete and 

that they understand that if they knowingly give information that is incorrect or 

incomplete, that the Council may take action against them. This may include 

court action.   

13.2 If a claimant dishonestly makes a false statement or fails to disclose 

information they are under a legal duty to disclose with intention to make a 

gain or cause a loss to another, they may be guilty of a criminal offence.  

13.3 The Council reserves the right to investigate and prosecute potential offences 

committed by any claimant/recipient of its scheme. It may do so instead of, or 

as well as, taking any civil action open to it.  

13.4 The Council has adopted a Risk Based Verification Policy for the purpose of 

determining entitlement to CTR. This specifically determines the standard of 

Page 33



 16  
 

verification required to support an application. Claims that are determined to 

have a low risk of fraud an error only require a minimum standard of proof, 

while claims that are high risk will require a greater standard of proof. The 

adoption of this Policy aims to reduce the level of fraud and error. This is 

monitored for the purpose of this Policy and adjustments made where 

necessary.  

 

14.0   Work incentives 

 

14.1 The Council is keen to support people into work, and to continue this support 

while they are in low paid work, or working variable hours. The introduction of 

a banded scheme for UC claimants aims to simplify the scheme for working 

age customers. These customers will remain in a particular band when they 

have small adjustments to their earnings, meaning that they will be better able 

to manage their finances and not be subject to a change in Council Tax 

payable every month (unless the change means that the claimant moves 

between bands).  

 

15.0   Changes to the scheme  

 

15.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 stipulates that for each financial 

year the billing authority must consider whether to revise its scheme or 

replace it with another scheme. The authority must make any revision to its 

scheme, or any replacement scheme, no later than the 11th March in the 

financial year preceding that for which the revision or replacement scheme is 

to have effect. The Secretary of State may amend this date.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 34



 17  
 

Appendix 1:  

The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 

2012  

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2885/pdfs/uksi_20122885_en.pdf 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1305/pdfs/uksi_20171305_en.pdf 

Appendix 2:  

The Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/213/contents 

 

  

Page 35

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2885/pdfs/uksi_20122885_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1305/pdfs/uksi_20171305_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/213/contents


 18  
 

Appendix 3 Council Tax Reduction Discretionary Awards Policy  
 

1. Background 

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 gave Local Authority’s the freedom to 

develop their own Council Tax Reduction Schemes for people of working age giving 

due consideration to the needs of their residents. These Schemes sit under Section 

13A (1) (a) of this Act. There are certain circumstances where the Council may apply 

discretion to ensure that the needs of residents are met. This Policy outlines who can 

apply for a Discretionary award and the decision making process that Officers of the 

Authority will follow when considering these decisions.  

2. Individuals who may be awarded a Discretionary Council Tax Reduction 

There are three situations where additional CTR will be considered by the Authority, 

these are described below. 

 Where there has been a change of entitlement that has resulted in the 

determination that an increased amount of Council Tax is due. Particularly in 

cases where there has been an error on behalf of the Authority.  

 Where a household is disadvantaged by being assessed under Class F of the 

Scheme (banded scheme for Universal Credit).  

 Where an individual is a Care Leaver in receipt of a reduction but require 

additional support to assist them in transitioning to unsupported living.  

Changes in the amount of CTR awarded 

In certain limited circumstances the Council may decide not to recover an increase in 

council tax resulting from a change in CTR.   

An amount of increased council tax can be considered for write off if the Council uses 

its discretion and decides not to recover it. The Council may use its discretion from 

the outset when the increased amount of council tax is decided, based on information 

that it has, or may use its discretion later at the request of the claimant or the 

claimant’s representative. These types of write offs are called discretionary CTR write 

offs.  

If increased liability arose as a consequence of an official error by the Council 

consideration will be given to whether the amount should be recovered from the 

person to whom it was paid. This may be the only factor considered or it may be 

combined with other relevant factors such as financial hardship or health.  

In identifying the cause of an adjustment to a person’s council tax liability the 

appropriate consideration is “what is the substantial cause of the increased charge 

viewed in a common sense way?” The claimant or a third party can only cause’ an 

adjustment if they intentionally or unintentionally misrepresent, or fail to disclose a 

material fact.  

Page 36



 19  
 

If there is more than one cause of an adjustment, these must be separated out. In 

such cases the two (or more causes), periods and amounts must be separately 

identified, and separate decisions made about whether the amount will be recovered.  

An official error is a mistake, whether in the form of an act or omission, made by the 

Council, or someone acting on their behalf (such as a contractor or housing 

association that verifies claims on the Council’s behalf).  

4.2 Financial vulnerability as a result of the banded UC scheme (Class F) 

Where a claimant can demonstrate that the effect of the banded scheme for UC 

claims (Class F in the scheme) has caused financial hardship, in comparison to what 

they would have been entitled using a means (Class E) they may apply for a 

Discretionary Award of CTR.  

An award may also be made under this provision to assist a customer with the 

transition to UC. For some customers adjusting to this new income can be 

challenging therefore if appropriate a short term award of additional CTR may be 

made aimed at alleviating hardship as a result of this transition.  

The circumstances in which this type of award would be made are limited to those 

claimants in receipt of UC who are disadvantaged by the income bandings applied to 

this class or disadvantaged by the fact that they are in receipt of UC, in comparison 

to traditional means test or legacy benefits 

The customer will need detail how they feel that they have been financially 

disadvantaged and provide evidence of financial hardship to demonstrate this if 

appropriate.  

4.3 Care Leavers  

A care leaver is defined as a person that has previously been looked after by a Local 

Authority under the Children Act 2000. A discretionary award may be paid in addition 

to CTR awarded under this scheme where a customer is in financial hardship and 

they require support in the transition to adulthood.  

3. Applications  

Applications should be made in writing by letter or email, the request should detail 

the grounds on which the application is made and the applicant should provide 

documentary evidence to support their case where necessary. A new application will 

need to be made for each financial year, however generally awards are intended to 

be made on a short term basis only.  

4. Decision making  

A Senior Benefits Officer (the decision maker) will determine the facts of the case, 

considering the CTR award as the first step and establishing whether any other 

discount or exemption may be applicable in the circumstances.  The decision maker 

will take account of a variety of factors including, but not restricted to:  

 Financial hardship  

Page 37



 20  
 

 Terminal illness 

 Senility or learning disabilities  

 Severe medical conditions, including mental illness 

 Health & welfare   

 Cause of an award adjustment 

 

5. Start date of a reduction  

The decision maker will decide the period that it is appropriate to make a decision. 

Generally this will be for a past period where an award adjustment has been created 

in the past or an ongoing award made from the date of application or change in 

circumstances aimed at transitioning a claimant into UC or from leaving care.  

6. Charges that will not be considered to attract a Discretionary Reduction  

The following will not be considered for a Discretionary Reduction.  

 Increased Council Tax as a consequence of Fraud  

 Penalty charges applied to an account as a consequence of Fraud  

 Court costs  

 Recovery costs e.g. the cost of the issue of a summons or costs incurred by 

an enforcement agent 

 

7. Notification of decision  

The applicant and/or their representative will be informed of the decision in writing, 

issued either by email or letter. This letter will advise them of the outcome of their 

application and where a refusal is made detail the reasoning behind the decision not 

to make an award. The applicant will also be advised what they need to do next if 

they disagree with the decision that has been made.  

Where an application for discretion is made for circumstances that fall out of those 

detailed in Paragraph 2 of this Policy these applications will be dealt with under The 

Council’s Discretionary Council Tax Reduction Policy under 13A(1)(C) of the Local 

Government Finance Act 2012. This Policy has been included as Appendix to this 

document. This Policy allows for discretion to be applied to any bill payer of the 

District, not just those in receipt of CTR.  

8. Reconsiderations and Appeals 

Reconsiderations against CTR discretionary decisions will be considered by another 

Senior Benefits Officer of the Authority using the same decision making and 

notification principles described above. 

If the applicant disagrees with the outcome of the reconsideration they may appeal 

directly to the Valuation Tribunal for England. This is an independent body which 

adjudicates on disputes between Council Tax payers and the billing Authority (the 

Council). Appeals must be made direct to the Valuation Tribunal within two months of 

the notification of decision.  

Page 38



Chichester District Council 
 
 THE CABINET        7 DECEMBER 2021
  

 
Determination of the Council Tax Base 2022-2023  

 
1. Contacts 
 

Report Author: 
Paul Jobson, Revenues and Debt Recovery Manager 
Tel: 01243 534501           E-mail: pjobson@chichester.gov.uk  
 
Cabinet Member:    
Peter Wilding, Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate Services, Revenues & Benefits.  
Tel: 01428 707324           E-mail: pwilding@chichester.gov.uk  
 
 

2. Recommendation  
 

2.1. In order to comply with section 35 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 
that the following resolutions be made;   
 

2.2. No item of expenditure shall be treated as ‘special expenses’ for the purposes 
of section 35 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 
 

2.3. This resolution in (2.2) shall remain in force for the 2022-2023 financial year. 
 

2.4. The calculation of the Chichester District Council’s taxbase for the year 2022-
2023 be approved. 
 

2.5. The amounts calculated by Chichester District Council as its council taxbase 
be those set out in appendices 1 and 2 to this report.  

 
3. Background  

 
3.1. The taxbase is a measure of the taxable capacity of the district and is set during the 

period 1 December to 31 January. Parish council’s, West Sussex County Council 
and the Police Authority are then notified of the proposed taxbase for the area 
relevant to them. As the billing authority, the District Council is then responsible for 
the payment of precepts from the collection fund or general fund for levies and 
parish precepts. 
 

3.2. The Council Taxbase represents the estimated full year number of chargeable 
dwellings in the area expressed as the equivalent number of band D dwellings. The 
taxbase calculations are based upon the numbers by council tax band in the 
Valuation List, plus the estimated new dwellings likely to enter the Valuation List 
during 2022/23. The result is adjusted for applicable discounts, exemptions and 
reductions. The figure of chargeable dwellings is further adjusted by an estimated 
collection rate of 99% ( see paragraph 5.1 below) 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7

mailto:pjobson@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:pwilding@chichester.gov.uk


3.3. Since 1 April 2013 the taxbase calculation for the District also takes account of our 
Council Tax Reduction (CTR) scheme. Properties where the resident will be in 
receipt of 100% CTR are fully disregarded in this calculation and pro rata for those 
on lower amounts. 
 

3.4. Summary of the taxbase of each parish is shown in appendix 2. 
 

4. Outcomes to be achieved 
 
4.1. The purpose of this report is to set the taxbase for the 2022/2023 financial year.  

 
4.2. Following approval, the relevant taxbase will be notified to precepting authorities to 

allow for them to set their budgets for 2022/2023. 
   
5. Proposal 

 
5.1. Collection Rate: An assumed ‘collection rate’ is used when calculating the taxbase. 

In determining the rate a number of factors are taken into consideration including 
losses in income through council tax banding reduction, absconds and backdated 
awards of discounts and exemptions. The assumed collection rate since 2013/14 
has been set at 99% and it is proposed to continue with a 99% collection rate for the 
2022/23 calculations. 
 

5.2. Special Items: Special expense items are those that relate to a part only of the 
District Council’s area. The determination of such special expenses would 
necessitate the creation of a special expense area which could be the whole of a 
parish within a parish or across parish boundaries. No such areas have been 
determined previously and it is recommended that the Cabinet resolve that any 
special expenses should be treated as general expenses for tax setting purposes.  

 
6. Alternatives that have been considered 

 
6.1. No alternatives have been considered for this report due to the legal requirement to 

set a taxbase. 
 

7. Resource and legal implications 
 
7.1. Finance: The Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 1992 (as 

amended) requires the billing authority to calculate the taxbase for its area and 
notify the figure to the precepting authorities in the period 1 December to 31 January 
in the preceding financial year. A delay in notifying the taxbase to precepting 
authorities could impact on their ability to set their budgets in time for setting council 
tax which must be set before 11 March in the financial year preceding that for which 
it is set.   
 

8. Consultation 
 
8.1. This report has not been subject to consultation.  

 
9. Community impact and corporate risks  

 

Page 40



9.1. The corporate risk of an inaccurate tax base is that there is potential for the 
collection fund to be in deficit or surplus.  
 

9.2. Since April 2013 the Council and precepting authorities have seen a reduction in 
taxbase resulting from the implementation of the council tax reduction scheme. The 
income generated from reducing locally defined discounts and charging the 
maximum Empty Homes Premium has helped to off-set this loss.   

 
 
10. Other Implications  

 

 Yes No 

Crime and Disorder   No 

Climate Change and Biodiversity   No 

Human Rights and Equality Impact   No 

Safeguarding and Early Help   No  

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)   
 

 No 

Health and Wellbeing 
 

 No  

Other (please specify)   No 

 
 
11. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 - Taxbase for the District of Chichester 2022/23 
Appendix 2 – Taxbase for each Parish within the District 2022/23 
 
  

 
12. Background papers  
 
12.1. None  

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Determination of Taxbase 2022-23

Appendix 1

Band@ Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total

Chargeable properties * 3.5           2,304.1    5,231.3    13,013.5  11,132.0  8,163.5    5,626.5    5,379.0    1,167.8    52,021.1  

 

Band D equivalents 1.9 1,536.1 4,068.8 11,567.6 11,401.3 9,977.6 8,127.2 8,965.0 2,334.5 57,980.0

Additional 50% income for prescribed classes A & 

B  (Second Homes) as Band D equivalents** 0 192.7 87.5 200.9 255 244.4 263.6 343.3 169 1,756.4

Additional Income for Empty Homes Premium 0 4.8 18.7 26.8 43 12.3 10 8.2 2 125.8

Taxbase deduction for Council Tax Reduction -4,262.7

Total taxbase for the Chichester District for 2022-

23 55,599.5

Adjusted for assumed collection rate of 99% 55,043.5

Note;- All calculations are subject to roundings

Notes

* Includes adjustments for Crown Property and property 

with restricted planning permission. Adjusted for roundings

**For calculation purposes

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Determination of Taxbase 2022/23

Appendix 2

Parish
Basic Taxbase   

Second Homes 

50%

Second Homes  

additional 50%

Basic Taxbase for 

2022-23

Additional income 

from Empty 

Homes Premium

Taxbase 

deduction for 

Council Tax 

Support Total Taxbase 

Adjusted for 

assumed 

collection rate of 

99%

Appledram 95.0 4.3 99.3 0.0 -4.1 95.2 94.2

Barlavington 54.6 3.1 57.7 0.0 -1.4 56.3 55.7

Bepton 148.0 4.2 152.2 0.0 -1.0 151.2 149.7

Bignor 67.7 7.3 75.0 0.0 -1.9 73.1 72.4

Birdham 862.5 38.9 901.4 0.0 -44.8 856.6 848.0

Bosham 1,625.9 107.0 1,732.9 0.0 -79.3 1,653.6 1,637.1

Boxgrove 512.4 9.8 522.2 0.0 -50.0 472.2 467.5

Bury 370.7 14.3 385.0 0.0 -14.7 370.3 366.6

Chichester City 12,681.6 220.7 12,902.3 31.9 -1,305.9 11,628.3 11,512.1

Chidham & Hanbrook 1,073.1 13.6 1,086.7 1.0 -69.4 1,018.3 1,008.1

Cocking 232.1 4.8 236.9 0.0 -17.1 219.8 217.6

Compton 221.9 8.6 230.5 1.0 -5.6 225.9 223.6

Donnington 1,076.3 7.7 1,084.0 1.2 -40.8 1,044.4 1,034.0

Duncton 230.5 10.6 241.1 0.0 -7.4 233.7 231.4

Earnley 297.8 61.3 359.1 0.0 -9.5 349.6 346.1

Eartham 47.3 4.7 52.0 0.0 -3.0 49.0 48.5

Easebourne 1,116.1 20.3 1,136.4 15.4 -64.4 1,087.4 1,076.5

East Dean 120.2 7.2 127.4 0.0 -11.7 115.7 114.5

East Lavington 121.6 7.5 129.1 5.6 -1.1 133.6 132.3

E.Wittering & Bracklesham 2,359.6 143.9 2,503.5 2.0 -229.5 2,276.0 2,253.2

Ebernoe 130.6 4.8 135.4 0.0 -0.3 135.1 133.7

Elsted & Treyford 163.4 11.2 174.6 4.7 -5.8 173.5 171.8

Fernhurst 1,409.8 20.5 1,430.3 4.0 -80.4 1,353.9 1,340.4

Fishbourne 1,137.4 9.5 1,146.9 0.0 -63.8 1,083.1 1,072.3

Fittleworth 550.2 14.8 565.0 0.0 -19.0 546.0 540.5

Funtington 840.7 21.2 861.9 0.9 -34.3 828.5 820.2

Graffham 336.7 13.2 349.9 4.0 -8.5 345.4 341.9

Harting 746.4 25.4 771.8 0.0 -41.8 730.0 722.7

Heyshott 165.1 9.9 175.0 0.0 -8.1 166.9 165.2

Hunston 494.3 3.6 497.9 0.0 -70.1 427.8 423.5

Kirdford 517.4 15.5 532.9 2.3 -27.1 508.1 503.0

Lavant 762.9 15.6 778.5 0.0 -68.9 709.6 702.5

Linch 42.9 1.9 44.8 0.0 -0.9 43.9 43.5

P
age 45



Determination of Taxbase 2022/23

Appendix 2

Second Homes  

additional 50%

Basic Taxbase for 

2022-23

Additional income 

from Empty 

Homes Premium

Taxbase 

deduction for 

Council Tax 

Support

Adjusted for 

assumed 

collection rate of 

99%

Linchmere 1,074.1 8.6 1,082.7 0.0 -28.5 1,054.2 1,043.7

Lodsworth 377.7 22.2 399.9 6.2 -6.0 400.1 396.1

Loxwood 841.6 8.8 850.4 0.0 -37.7 812.7 804.6

Lurgashall 338.4 19.1 357.5 5.7 -12.4 350.8 347.3

Marden 55.1 4.6 59.7 0.0 -2.4 57.3 56.7

Midhurst Town 2,507.2 34.3 2,541.5 2.5 -222.1 2,321.9 2,298.7

Milland 481.1 22.1 503.2 0.0 -11.8 491.4 486.5

North Mundham 645.6 13.6 659.2 0.7 -45.8 614.1 608.0

Northchapel 362.1 4.4 366.5 0.0 -30.9 335.6 332.2

Oving 823.4 8.3 831.7 6.0 -55.2 782.5 774.7

Petworth 1,392.3 34.1 1,426.4 14.1 -128.1 1,312.4 1,299.3

Plaistow & Ifold 1,140.6 13.5 1,154.1 0.0 -24.8 1,129.3 1,118.0

Rogate 804.2 21.1 825.3 1.8 -34.6 792.5 784.6

Selsey Town 4,771.8 205.1 4,976.9 3.1 -487.4 4,492.6 4,447.7

Sidlesham 633.3 25.8 659.1 0.0 -39.3 619.8 613.6

Singleton 260.5 14.1 274.6 0.0 -18.5 256.1 253.5

Southbourne 2,885.8 36.2 2,922.0 5.9 -223.0 2,704.9 2,677.9

Stedham with Iping 446.6 15.4 462.0 0.0 -25.3 436.7 432.3

Stopham 50.6 0.5 51.1 0.0 -2.5 48.6 48.1

Stoughton 351.6 12.2 363.8 0.0 -15.6 348.2 344.7

Sutton 116.2 11.8 128.0 0.0 -4.4 123.6 122.4

Tangmere 1,246.1 7.0 1,253.1 0.0 -132.1 1,121.0 1,109.8

Tillington 298.4 11.2 309.6 0.0 -12.6 297.0 294.0

Trotton with Chithurst 160.9 3.9 164.8 0.0 -8.5 156.3 154.7

Upwaltham 15.5 0.0 15.5 0.0 0.0 15.5 15.3

West Dean 218.1 9.7 227.8 4.2 -9.8 222.2 220.0

West Itchenor 358.0 51.0 409.0 0.0 -1.3 407.7 403.6

West Lavington 167.9 3.2 171.1 0.0 -5.0 166.1 164.4

West Thorney 222.0 0.0 222.0 0.0 0.0 222.0 219.8

West Wittering 1,648.9 227.4 1,876.3 0.0 -78.5 1,797.8 1,779.8

Westbourne 1,035.0 14.8 1,049.8 0.0 -85.9 963.9 954.3

Westhampnett 734.1 4.1 738.2 0.0 -41.7 696.5 689.5

Wisborough Green 810.3 15.8 826.1 1.6 -34.8 792.9 785.0

Woolbeding with Redford 92.3 5.6 97.9 0.0 -4.6 93.3 92.4

Totals 57,980.0 1,756.4 59,736.4 125.8 -4,262.7 55,599.5 55,043.5

Parish Basic Taxbase   

Second Homes 

50% Total Taxbase 

P
age 46



Chichester District Council 

THE CABINET                                7 December 2021 

 
Fees and Policies under The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be 

Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020  
 

1. Contacts 
 

Report Author(s): 
 

 Laurence Foord – Divisional Manager; Communications, Licensing & Events 
 Telephone: 01243 534742 E-mail: lfoord@chichester.gov.uk    
 

David Knowles-Ley – Licensing Manager  
 Telephone: 01243 534743  E-mail: dknowles-ley@chichester.gov.uk  

 
 Cabinet Member:  
 
 Councillor Alan Sutton – Cabinet Member for Housing, Communications, Licensing & 

Events 
 Telephone: 01798 342452   E-mail: asutton@chichester.gov.uk  
 
2. Executive Summary 

 

Cabinet approval is sought to adopt the proposed fee to be charged to undertake the 
statutory ‘Fit and Proper Person Test’ under The Mobile Homes (Requirement for 

Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020.  Approval 
is also sought of the associated separate Fee and Determination Policies. 

 
3. Recommendation 

  
3.1 Cabinet is recommended to approve the proposed fee and separate supporting 

Fees and Determination Policies.  
 
4. Background 

 
4.1 A new licensing function has been introduced by The Mobile Homes (Requirement 

for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020.   
 

4.2 All protected residential sites which are operated on a commercial basis must now 
demonstrate that they are operated and/or managed by a fit and proper person.   

   
4.3 The Fit and Proper Person Test is a new mechanism for Local Authorities to 

determine whether the person with day-to-day responsibility for managing every 
residential, commercial site within their district is a fit and proper person to do so. 

 
4.4 The proposed fee of £450 is in addition to any current fee charged for the 

administration of the licensing functions in respect of ‘Relevant Protected Sites’ under 
the Mobile Homes Act 2013. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8

mailto:lfoord@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:dknowles-ley@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:asutton@chichester.gov.uk


 
4.5  Any charges must be justifiable and reasonable ensuring full transparency for the site 

owner.  
 
5. Outcomes to be Achieved 

 
5.1 The proposed fee, along with the separate Fee and Determination policies, were 

presented to and approved by the General Licensing Committee on 1 November 
2021.   

 
5.2 The Local Authority must publish its fee and supporting Fees Policy which can be 

revised if necessary. The purpose of publishing the Fees Policy is to show that the 
fees imposed by the Local Authority are fair and transparent so that anyone required 
to pay a fee can understand the charges.  
 

6. Proposal 
 
6.1 The proposed fees calculation table found at Appendix 1 outlines the various tasks 

that are expected to be carried out in determining whether an individual is ‘fit and 
proper’.  This provides a transparent justification for an appropriate fee to be imposed 
upon receipt of an application.  

 
6.2 A Local Authority is not required to consider an application as having been validly 

made unless it is accompanied by the correct fee.  
 
7. Alternatives Considered 

 
7.1 As referred to above, it is a statutory requirement that the authority prepares and 

publishes a Fees Policy, so no alternative was considered.  As a minimum, it is 
proposed to publish a copy of both the approved Fees Policy and Determination 
Policy on the Local Authority’s website and to write to all parties who it is believed 
may have to make an application.  

  
8.     Resource and Legal Implications 
 
8.1 There are no resource and/or legal implications raised other than those set out within 

the body of this report.  In order that the Local Authority may recover the full costs 
associated with delivering this new statutory licensing function, it must have adopted 
a Fees Policy. 

 
9.      Consultation 

 
9.1    As mentioned earlier, it is a statutory requirement that the authority prepares and 

publishes a Fees Policy and there is no statutory requirement to undertake a 
consultation exercise.  As a minimum it is proposed to post a copy of the approved 
policy on the Local Authority’s website and write to the respective site owners.    

 
10.    Community Impact and Corporate Risks  
 
10.1 The aim of the new ‘fit and proper person test’ and associated powers is to protect 

vulnerable occupants from the potential poor management practices of residential 
site owners. Residents of such sites are often older people. Adopting these policies 

Page 48



will better enable the Local Authority to effectively resource and determine 
applications, helping to improve the management of park home sites for all residents 
ensuring affected sites are operated only by persons who are deemed to be ‘fit and 
proper’.  
 

11.   Other Implications 
  

 Yes No 

Crime and Disorder  X  

Biodiversity and Climate Change Mitigation   X 

Human Rights and Equality Impact  X  

Safeguarding and Early Help  X  

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)    X 

Health and Wellbeing 
 

X 
 

Other (please specify)   X 

 
9. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 Proposed fee for ‘Fit & Proper Person Test’  
Appendix 2 Proposed Fee Policy 
Appendix 3 Proposed Determination Policy  

 
10. Background Papers 

 
Policy templates emanating from the Caravan Site Licensing Forum for England – 

Guidance and templates for Fees Policy & Determination Policy 
Guidance for Site Owners 
General guidance/advice to Local Authority Forum members 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 – Proposed Fee for ‘Fit & Proper Person Test’ 

Task Time 
(Approx.) 

Cost & officer(s) 

Generate and send 
acknowledgement letter 

0.25 6.00 AA 

Check application is valid and correct 
fee included 

0.25 6.00 AA 

Enter application and supporting 
documents onto Uniform & Document 

Management System 

 
0.5  

 
12.00 

 
AA 

Review/consider application form and 
associated documents 

2.0  70.00 LT 

Officer travel time and site 
inspection(s) 

3.0  104.00 LT 

Conduct Fit & Proper Person 
assessment 

3.0  104.00 LT 

Enter outcome of Fit & Proper Person 
assessment onto Uniform & 

Document Management System 

 
0.25 

 
9.00 

 
LT 

Preparing and issuing of 
acceptance/refusal documentation 
and conditions (where appropriate) 

 
0.5  

 

 
17.00 

 
LT 

Prepare report of breach of conditions 
(where appropriate) 

 
1.5  

 

 
52.00 

 
LT 

Licensing Manager review and 
authorisation 

1.0  55.00 LM 

Enter applicant onto to electronic 
register 

0.25  6.00 AA 

Review and maintain register 0.25 9.00 LT 

 
Total (per Fit & Proper Person Test 

Application) 
 

 
12.75 hrs 

 
£450.00 

 
AA – Administration Assistant 
LT – Licensing Technician 
LM – Licensing Manager 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Fit and Proper Person Fee(s) Policy (v2)  

1 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Caravan Sites & Control of Development Act, 1960 – Fit & Proper Person Test 
 

FEE POLICY 

 
Introduction 

1.0 A relevant protected site is a site, which requires a license and is not solely for holiday 
purposes or is otherwise not capable of being used all year round. A relevant protected site 
cannot operate unless the local authority is satisfied that the manager qualifies as a fit and 
proper person (Sections 12A -12E of the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960, 
as implemented by Section 8 Mobile Homes Act 2013). 

 
1.1 Under the Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) 

(England) Regulations 2020 (SI 2020/1034) (“the Regulations”) a site owner must apply to 
their local authority for the relevant person (themselves or their appointed manager) to be 
added to the register of fit and proper persons. 

 
1.2 The site owner may only apply to be added to the register if they hold, or have applied for, a 

site licence for the site. This provision also applies where the site owner or site manager is a 
registered company.  

 
1.3 The Regulations permit the local authority, in this instance Chichester District Council 

(‘Chichester DC’) to determine the fee for an application or registration for someone to be 
added to the register. It is imperative that the fee is included with the application and failing to 
include this may mean that the site owner is in breach of the requirements of the Regulations.  

 
1.4  It is important to highlight that this Fee Policy will refer to any annual fee to recover costs 

which Chichester DC may have incurred, or which will be incurred, in appointing a person to 
manage a site with the site owner’s consent.   

 
1.5  Site owners will be required to submit a completed application and pay the fee, outlined below, 

to Chichester DC.  
 

Fees for Fit and Proper Persons Register Applications 

Initial application fee 

2.0 Chichester DC operates a fixed initial application fee which must be paid at the point of 

lodgment of the application, Upon receipt of a complete and proper application form, relevant 

supporting documents and the requisite fee, Chichester DC will notify the applicant that 

payment has been received and their application is in progress. 

2.1 To arrive at a fixed fee, Chichester DC has estimated the average time to conduct a ‘fit and 
proper person’ assessment and checks required to be included on the register and has applied 
hourly rates (or proportions thereof) based on the likely posts that will be involved in 
conducting these assessments. These calculations are outlined in the fees schedule. 

 

Page 53



Fit and Proper Person Fee(s) Policy (v2)  

2 
 
 

2.2   The following matters may be considered as costs incurred, or likely to be incurred, when 
determining the fee for consideration of applications for entry onto Chichester DC’s ‘Fit & 
Proper Person’ register. 

 
(a) Initial enquiries; 
(b) letter writing/ telephone calls etc to make appointments and requesting any documents or 

other information from the site owner or from any third party in connection with the fit and 
proper process;  

(c) sending out forms;  
(d) updating files/ computer systems and websites; 
(e) processing the application fee;  
(f) land registry searches;  
(g) time for reviewing necessary documents and certificates; 
(h) preparing preliminary and final decision notices;  
(i) review by manager or lawyers; review any representations made by applicants or responses 

from third parties;   
(j) updating the public register;  
(k) carrying out any risk assessment process considered necessary and 
(l) reviews of decisions or in defending appeals.   

 
2.3   Charges will be limited to recovering the costs of exercising the ‘fit & proper person’ test 

function and not recovering other costs that have already been charged for by other service 
areas, 

 
2.4   The fee schedule outlines the above and provides transparent justification for the fee to be 

imposed upon receipt of the initial application. The purpose of the fees schedule is to 
demonstrate that the fees imposed are fair and transparent providing justification as to why a 
site is required to pay the fee.   

 

Additional considerations for an application fee: 

 

3.0 Chichester DC will be required to conduct relevant background checks regarding the 
applicant’s experience in site management and their financial standing. The results of these 
checks will allow Chichester DC to decide on whether to approve the application. The time 
taken for these checks should be accounted for in the fee, irrespective whether the entry on 
the register is granted. 

3.1 In the event that a prospective applicant contacts Chichester DC before making an application 
in order to ascertain the likelihood of the success of their application, Chichester DC is 
expected to provide informal advice. Any preliminary advice provided may be accounted for in 
the fee and cannot be charged separately. 

  3.2 There is further guidance relating to this in Chichester DC’s fit and proper person   
Determination Policy.  

Annual fee for an existing entry on the register: 

4.0 Chichester DC has determined not to charge an annual fee for simple inclusion on the fit and 
proper person register. In the event that conditions are added to the determination, an annual 
fee will be imposed (as per the fees schedule) reflecting the additional work relating to these 
matters. 

 
4.1 The annual fee is to be paid on the anniversary of the entry onto the register. 
 
Such other matters as the Local Authority considers to be relevant 

An appointed Manager fee 

Page 54



Fit and Proper Person Fee(s) Policy (v2)  

3 
 
 

5.0 This is where Chichester DC agrees, following the site owner’s consent, to appoint an 

individual to manage a site. In this event, the applicable recoverable costs will be agreed in 

advance with the site owner, including any component which is to be paid in advance of this 

agreement. 

Revising Fees 

6.0 Chichester DC may revise its fees policy and will be required to publish the revised policy. Any 

changes will need to be justifiable and reasonable, ensuring full transparency for the site 

owner. The purpose of publishing the fee policy is to show that the fees imposed by 

Chichester DC are fair and transparent so that anyone required to pay a fee can understand 

the charges. 

Amending conditions attached to an entry on the register 

7.0 Chichester DC may alter the conditions attached to an entry on a register (by adding new 

conditions or by changing or deleting existing ones), following a review. Chichester DC must 

notify the site owner of its interim decision (except in the case where it is deleting a condition) 

and consider any representations made by the site owner before reaching a final decision. If 

the site owner is unhappy with Chichester DC’s decision, they will have a right of appeal to the 

First-Tier Tribunal (Property Chamber). 

7.1 There are no requirements for a site owner to make an application for a condition to be 

altered. Any costs involved with amending existing conditions or adding new conditions to an 

entry must also be factored into the cost of calculating the annual fee. 

Site visits – officer and travel time 

8.0 Officer time can be considered as part of the fee where site visits are required to ascertain 

whether site condition(s) are met. Travel time and fuel costs can be considered. 

Payment of fees 

9.0 Chichester DC is not required to consider an application for entry on the register unless that 

application is accompanied by the requisite fee. If that fee is not paid, the application will not 

be accepted as valid and the site owner could be in breach of the Regulations. In this event, 

Chichester DC will notify the applicant within fourteen days of receipt of the application that 

their application is not valid. 

9.1 If Chichester DC decides not to approve an application, the applicant is not entitled to a refund 

of the fee paid. 

9.2 In the event that a request is made for a withdrawal of a fit and proper person application 

within fourteen days of submission of that application, a refund may be applicable, based on 

the calculations of work already undertaken (up to a maximum of 50% of the application fee). 

9.3 The annual fee, where applicable, will be set as a condition to any entry being added to the 

register. 

Where no fee is applied  

10.0  In certain circumstances, the local authority may determine that no fee is required to be paid. 
A site is exempted from a fee only if it is occupied by the owner or members of the owner’s 
family and is not being run as a commercial residential site.  

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act, 1960 - 
__________________________________________ 

  
FIT & PROPER PERSON TEST  

DETERMINATION POLICY 
__________________________________________ 

                                                     
 

Introduction  
 
The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) 
(England) Regulations 2020, require the manager of a site to be a Fit and Proper 
Person (“the Regulations”). Chichester District Council (Chichester DC) is 
accordingly required to introduce a fit and proper person test for mobile home site 
owners, or the person appointed to manage the site, unless they are eligible for an 
exemption under the Regulations1. 
 
The Regulations, made on 23 September 2020, allow local authorities to receive 
applications from site owners, or the person appointed to manage the site, from 1 
July 2021.  
 
Chichester DC must be satisfied that the site owner “is a fit and proper person to 
manage the site” or, if the owner does not manage the site, “that a person appointed” 
to do so by the site owner “is a fit and proper person to do so” or has, with the site 
owner’s consent, “appointed a person to manage the site.”  
 
Where a site owner or their manager fails the fit and proper person test, and they are 
unable to identify and appoint a suitable alternative manager, who must pass the fit 
and proper person assessment, Chichester DC can instead appoint a person to 
manage the site, but only with the consent of the site owner. 
 
Principally, the fit and proper person test applies to a “relevant protected site”. A 
relevant protected site is a site, which requires a licence and which is not solely for 
holiday purposes or is otherwise not capable of being used all year round. The fit and 
proper person requirement will ensure that site owners, or their managers, have 
integrity and follow best practice. Additionally, it provides the safeguard that such 
individuals will not pose a risk to the welfare or safety of persons occupying mobile 
homes on the site i.e. park home owners.  
 
The Evidence 
 
When conducting the fit and proper person assessment, Chichester DC must 
consider the following points relevant to the application:  
 
Is the individual able to conduct effective management of the site. This includes, 
but is not limited to, securing compliance with the site licence and the long-term 
maintenance of the site. Chichester DC must have regard to:   

                                                 
1 *i.e. it is a non-commercial, family occupied site under Regulation 3 

 

Page 57



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

(a) whether the person has a sufficient level of competence to manage the site; 
(b) the management structure and funding arrangements for the site, and  
(c) the proposed management structure and funding arrangements.  

 
(a) Competence to manage the site 

 
This includes reviewing the competency of the appointed individual. The individual 
must have sufficient experience in site management, or have received sufficient 
training, and be fully aware of the relevant law as well as health and safety 
requirements.  
 
(b)      The management structure and funding arrangements for the site 
 
Chichester DC must consider whether relevant management structures are in place 
and whether they are adequate to ensure effective management of the site. The 
applicant is expected to have a robust management plan in place which is kept under 
review and should address the following points: 
 

 also be reviewed to ensure it addresses the following issues:  

 the pitch fee payment 

 proximity of the manager to the site 

 manager’s contact details for residents (including out of office and emergency 
contact details) 

 the complaints procedure 

 maintenance 

 staffing 

 refuse/recycling removal.  
 

It is advisable that the site is managed by an applicant based in the United Kingdom 
and a management structure would be unlikely to be suitable if the applicant is an 
individual, or a company (including its directors), which does not reside or have a 
permanent United Kingdom address. This is because there may complex issues as 
a result of this, such as needing the court’s permission to serve a claim in a foreign 
country. Should this happen, counsel would be able to assist. The applicant’s interest 
in the land will also have an important impact, as would their financial standing, 
management structures and competence, all of which could contribute to the overall 
assessment of their suitability to manage the site effectively. 

 
(c)  The proposed management structure and funding arrangements in place 

 for managing the site  
  
Chichester DC must consider whether the applicant has sufficient funds (or has 
access to sufficient funds) to manage the site and comply with licence obligations. 
Evidence of these funds should be readily available.  
 
Personal information relating to the applicant concerned. This includes a 
criminal record check and should include evidence that the applicant: 

 

Page 58



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

 has not committed any offence involving fraud or other dishonesty, violence, 
firearms or drugs or any offence listed in Schedule 3 to the Sexual Offences 
Act 2003 (offences attracting notification requirements); 

 has not contravened any provision of the law relating to housing, caravan 
sites, mobile homes, public health, planning or environmental health or of 
landlord and tenant law; 

 has not contravened any provision of the Equality Act 2010 in, or in 
connection with, the carrying on of any business; 

 has not harassed any person in, or in connection with, the carrying on of any 
business; 

 is not or has not been within the past 10 years, personally insolvent; 

 is not or has not been within the past 10 years, disqualified from acting as a 
company director; 

 has the right to work in the United Kingdom and, 

 is a member of any redress scheme enabling complaints to be dealt with in 
connection with the management of the site (when this is in place) 

  
Chichester DC has a duty to investigate any conduct which could amount to 
harassment and any evidence obtained should be reviewed to determine whether it 
is sufficient to be used to prosecute a site owner. Chichester DC may also rely on 
convictions by the courts as evidence of harassing behaviour which would reduce the 
risk of the local authority being successfully challenged on any refusal to approve an 
applicant on this basis. 
  
Chichester DC may have records of previous harassment complaints made against 
a site owner or their manager. Even if no action was taken on these complaints it is 
still advisable that these be taken into consideration in the fit and proper person 
determination. These complaints may identify further potential risks and can provide 
an indication of potential underlying problems with the management of the site or the 
site owner’s lack of experience/skills in dealing with customers. Chichester DC may 
address any underlying issues by attaching conditions to the individual’s entry on the 
register. 
  
Upon rejection of a person’s application by other Local Authorities. Upon 
rejection of a person’s application by any other Local Authority, this should be 
centrally recorded and include the details of the person involved and the reasons for 
the rejection.  
 
Items to take into consideration 
 

“The applicant” is defined at paragraph 2 of the Regulations as “the person who        
makes an application under regulation 6”.  
 
The “relevant person” is also defined at paragraph 2 of the Regulations to mean “the 
subject of the fit and proper person assessment under Regulation 7”.  
 
The conduct of any person associated or formerly associated with the relevant person 
(whether on a personal, work or other basis) is also an important factor to be 
considered in the fit and proper person assessment.   
 

Page 59



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

Site owners may be required to provide details of any current or former associates of 
the relevant person in the application form. Those associates will not include other 
current joint owners as that information would have already needed to have been 
provided in their own application forms. 

 
It is not routinely required to provide information of all current or past associates of 
the site owner. However, it is advisable that, prior to making any final decisions, 
Chichester DC considers the conduct of past and current associates relevant to that 
individual’s application. The site owner can be asked to provide additional information 
during the application process.  

 
Chichester DC will be required to establish whether an individual is considered to be 
an associate of the relevant person and then whether their conduct is relevant to the 
application. A relevant associate could be defined as any individual who may have 
played a part, directly or indirectly, in a decision or action, which has had an impact 
on residents’ rights, or the quiet enjoyment of their homes.  
 
The Regulations are drafted widely giving the opportunity for local authorities to take 
into consideration other relevant matters. However, Chichester DC is mindful that 
poor management practices do not affect a person’s conduct, unless they are also a 
breach of the criminal or civil law. A person cannot be deemed unfit due to conduct, 
simply because of poor management, although that factor is highly relevant to 
determining any question of suitability or competence. However, all conduct is 
relevant in relation to the person’s fitness to hold a licence and/or manage the mobile 
home site.  

 
Chichester DC is able to decide the specific matters they deem relevant to the fit and 
proper person application. These matters could be in relation to current or previous 
issues, or events, that have occurred in relation to the park site or any other park site 
owned or managed by the site owner or site manager in another local authority area. 
Additionally, the site owner’s conduct regarding other business, outside of the park 
homes sector, can also have implications on the financial and management 
arrangements of the site in question. Any matters which Chichester DC believes to 
be of relevance to the application should primarily focus on the relevant person’s 
conduct, competence and their suitability to manage the site.  

 
Chichester DC aim to obtain evidence to support any additional matters that they 
require to be considered for each application. This is to mitigate any risks should the 
Council’s final decision be challenged at a tribunal. The evidence could include 
previous tribunal and court decisions, documents or records from Companies House, 
or other public bodies or financial institutions. It is not anticipated that allegations 
which have not been investigated or documented will be used as evidence to support 
an authority’s decision.  
 
Applications 
 
The Regulations use various terms in the application process and these are outlined 
below: 
 

Page 60



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

The “Relevant person” is defined in paragraph 2 of the Regulations and is “the 
subject of the fit and proper person assessment under Regulation 7”. This could be 
the site owner or person appointed by the site owner to manage the site.   
 
“Relevant officer” is defined in paragraph 1 of Schedule 2 of the Regulations, where 
the applicant is a company, a relevant officer will be a director or other officer of the 
company. Where the applicant is a partnership, a relevant officer will be a partner. 
Where the applicant is a body corporate, a relevant officer will be a member of the 
management committee of that body.  
 
“Required Information” is defined in paragraph 14 of Schedule 2 of the Regulations 
(the Regulations incorrectly state that this information is contained in paragraph 13) 
as: 
 

 the person’s name and business contact details;  

 details of the person’s role or proposed role in relation to the management of 
the site;  

 where the person has not yet been appointed, the address, telephone number 
and email address (if any) at which the person may be contacted in respect of 
the application;  

 details of each relevant protected site (other than that to which the registration 
application relates) — for which the person holds a licence issued under 
section 3 of the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960, or in 
which the person has a legal estate or equitable interest, or which the person 
manages. 

 
The application for inclusion in the fit and proper register, must therefore include the 
following: 
 
Details of the site and the applicant: 
 
Information provided must include: 
 

 The applicant’s name and business contact details.  
 
Where the applicant is not an individual, the following information in relation to the 
individual completing the application on behalf of the applicant and each relevant 
officer: 
  (i) the person’s name; 
  (ii) details of the person’s role (if any) in relation to the   
  management of the site. 
 

 The name and address of the site; 

 Evidence of the applicant’s legal estate or equitable interest in the site; 

 Confirmation that the applicant is the occupier within the meaning of section 1 
of the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960; 

 The name and business contact details of any other person that has a legal 
estate or equitable interest in the site. 

 
The name and address of each other relevant protected sites: 

Page 61



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

 

 for which the applicant holds a licence issued under section 3 of the Caravan 
Sites and Control of Development Act 1960; 

 in which the applicant has a legal estate or equitable interest;  

 that the applicant manages. 
 
The applicant must clearly specify whether their application is made in respect of 
either the applicant, or site owner, or the person that the applicant or site owner has 
appointed to manage the site. 
 
Information relating to the site manager 
 
In circumstances where a “site manager” has been appointed to manage a site, more 
information is needed. The person who is applying for the site manager to be 
registered as a fit and proper person (the relevant person) must provide the following 
information: the site manager’s name and details of that person’s role (if any) in 
relation to the management of the site.  

 
If the site manager has appointed or intends to appoint a further individual (“A”), 
‘Required Information’ would also be needed from A. And where A is not a relevant 
officer of the site manager, the relevant officer to whom A is accountable. for the day-
to-day management of the site, should be the one to provide the Required 
Information.  
 
Additional information when the applicant is the relevant person and an 
individual 
 
When the applicant is the relevant person, and is an individual, and the applicant has 
appointed, or intends to appoint, someone else (“B”) to be responsible for the day-to-
day management of the site, ‘Required Information’ would be needed from B. If B is 
not an individual but is, instead, for example, a company, and B has appointed an 
individual (“C”) to do the-day-to day management, ‘Required Information’ would be 
needed from C. Where C is not a Relevant officer of a company, the relevant officer 
to whom C is accountable for the day-to-day management of the site would also need 
to provide the Required information.  
 
Additional information where applicant is relevant person and not an individual  
 
When the applicant is the relevant person but is not an individual and the applicant 
has appointed or intends to appoint someone else (“B”) to be responsible for the day-
to-day management of the site, Required Information would be needed from this 
person. If B is not a Relevant officer of the applicant, the person to whom B is 
accountable for the day-to-day management of the site (“C”) would also need to 
provide the Required Information. Where B itself is not an individual, the individual 
(“D”) that B has appointed or intends to appoint to be responsible for the day-to-day 
management of the site would also need to provide the Required Information. Where 
D is not a Relevant officer of B, the relevant Officer to whom D is accountable for the 
day-to-day management of the site would also need to provide the Required 
Information.  
 

Page 62



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

Regulations prohibit the operation of a relevant protected site unless the site owner 
or its site manager (whatever the management structure might be) has been 
assessed by the local authority as a fit and proper person to do so. This has been 
included to ensure that consistent standards are applied to companies and other 
organisations that are not individuals.  
 
Criminal record certificate/s 
 
Criminal Records Certificates must be issued under section 113A (1) of the Police 
Act 1997 and will be required where: (a) the Relevant person is an individual and (b) 
for each individual in relation to whom the applicant is required to provide information 
for example, a site manager or individuals A, B, C or D as outlined above. 
 
Chichester DC has the discretion to require the criminal record be either basic or 
enhanced.  
 
The certificate must have been issued no more than six months before the date of 
the application. It is incumbent upon the site owner to ensure that any certificates 
provided meet this requirement.   
 
Declaration  
 
A declaration made and signed by the “appropriate person”, which means: 
 

 where the applicant is a company, a director or other officer of the company;  

 where the applicant is a partnership, one of the partners;  

 where the applicant is a body corporate and the conduct of the management 
of the body is vested in its members, a member;  

 where the applicant is not a body falling within (a) to (c) above, a member of 
the management committee;  

 where the applicant is an individual, that individual. 
 
Where the applicant is not the relevant person, the declaration must confirm that the 
applicant has made all reasonable enquires into the matters mentioned in paragraph 
9 of the Regulations and considerations relevant to the fit and proper person 
assessment as set out below.  
 
The declaration should also state that the information provided in the application is 
correct and complete to the best of the applicant’s knowledge and belief.  
 
Considerations relevant to fit and proper person assessment 
 
Proper management of the site includes, but is not limited to, securing compliance 
with the site licence and the long-term maintenance of the site. 
 
To be able to secure the proper management of the site, Chichester DC must 
(amongst other things) have regard to whether the relevant person has a sufficient 
level of competence to manage the site and the management structure or proposed 
management structure and funding arrangements for the site in question.  
 

Page 63



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

Decisions, notification and rights of appeal 
 
Chichester DC must determine the application in a timely and practicable manner 
and either: 
 
Where the decision is to grant the application unconditionally and include the relevant 
person on the register for 5 years, serve a final  decision notice on the applicant. 
Where this is not the case serve a preliminary decision notice on the applicant. 
 
On receipt of an application Chichester DC may: 
 

 grant the application unconditionally; 

 grant the application subject to conditions; or 

 reject the application. 
 
Granting the application unconditionally 
 
Where Chichester DC is satisfied that the applicant meets the fit and proper person 
test unconditionally, the applicant must be included on the register for a maximum of 
5 years. Chichester DC will issue a final decision notice to the applicant to inform 
them of its decision.  
 
The final decision notice must clearly state: 
 

 the date the final decision notice is served; 

 the final decision; 

 the reason(s) for the decision; 

 when the decision is to take effect; 

 information about the right of appeal to the First Tier Tribunal and the period 
within which an appeal may be made. 

 
To include the applicant on the register subject to certain condition(s)  
 
In some circumstances, Chichester DC can specify that the individual for the fit and 
proper person test will only be successful if certain conditions are met. If these 
conditions are satisfied, the local authority can grant an application subject to those 
condition(s). The local authority can also grant an application for less than five years. 
 
Chichester DC may decide to include the person on a register subject to condition(s), 
if it would only be satisfied that the person would meet the fit and proper requirement 
if the condition(s) were complied with. An applicant will be able to appeal against the 
decision to attach (or vary) any condition to an entry on the register. It is therefore 
imperative for Chichester DC to ensure clear and justifiable reasons for attaching any 
condition(s) and that any conditions imposed can be enforced.  
 
Conditions will need to be clearly stated for the applicant’s understanding and this 
will also allow Chichester DC to ensure that the conditions are enforceable.  

 
An example of requirements is included in the Table 1 (overleaf):  
 

Page 64



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

Table 1 Example requirements 
 

Specific The specific condition(s) a site owner is being requested to 
address. 

Measurable The condition(s) required, and the outcome(s) expected. 

Achievable The applicant should be reasonably expected to be able to achieve 
the condition(s). For example, it may not be reasonable to expect a 
site owner of one small site to have the same resources to introduce 
the same procedures as a medium sized company. 

Realistic The applicant should have a clear understanding of how the required 
outcome can be reached and that there are no circumstances or 
factors which would make the achievement of the outcome 
impossible or unlikely. 

Timebound A clear timescale in which the task/action must be completed. 

 
What can a condition relate to? 
 
The fit and proper person test is aimed at ensuring that the person managing the site 
is competent and the conditions should relate directly to the person’s ability to secure 
the proper management of the site.  
 
Where a person has contravened legislation, or committed offences set out above, it 
is not recommended that conditions are set in relation to those matters. This is 
because such a condition would be unlikely to meet the tests set out above; for 
example, if a person has committed fraud or violence, that specific incident cannot 
be reversed by requiring the person to perform a specific task.  
 
In cases where the person has committed those listed offences or contravened 
legislation, Chichester DC will consider these breaches in tandem with all the other 
information available to reach a preliminary decision. 
 
Conditions can relate to any factors which are relevant to the person’s competence 
to manage the site, the management structure, or funding arrangements for the site, 
an associated person’s influence, and any other relevant factors. An example of a 
suitable condition could relate to the payment of the annual fee. A condition can also 
be set with respect to ensuring the relevant person has the ability to secure the proper 
management for the site. 
 
Example 1 - A local authority has evidence of a site owner’s failure over a certain 
period of time to address residents’ complaints. This is an example of poor 
management which could be resolved by the site owner implementing an adequate 
complaints procedure. A condition could be attached requiring the site owner to 
“implement an effective and accessible three stage complaints process for residents 
by xx date and provide the LA with quarterly reports of complaints and outcomes, 
from that date and for the first year”.  
 
If the condition is met within the specified time frame, the local authority can record 
this in the register. If, at a future date, it is found that the site owner failed to implement 
a complaints procedure, a further opportunity to comply may be given and this could 
include a new condition of the site owner providing quarterly reports of complaints 

Page 65



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

and outcomes for each year. The site owner could also be expected to complete a 
relevant “CPD customer service/Dealing with complaints” course by a certain period. 
However, should the local authority consider the actions as unlikely to achieve the 
desired outcome, the site owner could be removed from the register.  
 
Example 2 – If, when considering an application, certain documents or information 
are unavailable to the applicant, because of delays from third parties, the local 
authority may wish to attach a condition to the entry on the register that the site owner 
“is to provide the authority by registered post, with the original xx document by xx 
date”. 
 
Example 3 - An associated person has been visiting the park and, through their 
action ‘X’, has caused distress to the residents impacting their well-being and 
security. A condition could be attached to the register requiring the site owner to put 
measure(s) in place by xxx date preventing the associated person, or any other 
person, from carrying out action X on the site. 
 
Decisions not to include the applicant on the register 
 
Should Chichester DC determine that the applicant does not meet the requirements, 
and attaching conditions would not be appropriate, a refusal to grant the application 
can be issued.  
 
Where Chichester DC decides to include the applicant on the register, subject to 
conditions, or not to include the applicant on the register, a preliminary decision notice 
to the applicant must be issued. 
 
The preliminary decision notice must clearly state:  
 

 the date the preliminary decision notice is served; 

 the preliminary decision; 

 the reasons for it; 

 the date it is proposed that the final decision will have effect; 

 information about the right to make written representations 

 where the preliminary decision is to refuse the application, the consequences 
of causing or permitting the land to be used as a relevant protected site in 
contravention of the Regulations; 

 where the preliminary decision is to grant the application subject to 
conditions, the consequences of failing to comply with any conditions.  

 
Right to make a representation 

An applicant who receives a preliminary decision notice will have 28 days in which to 
make representations to Chichester DC. The 28-day period begins with the day after 
the day on which the notice was served. Chichester DC is obliged to consider and 
take any representations it receives into account before making a final decision.  
 
 

Page 66



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

Final decision notice 

As soon as reasonably practicable, after the end of the period allowed for making 
representations, Chichester DC must make a final decision and serve the decision 
notice on the applicant. 
 
The final decision notice must set out:  
 

 the date the final decision notice is served; 

 the final decision; 

 the reasons for it; 

 when the decision is to take effect; 

 information about the right of appeal and the period within which an appeal 
may be made; 

 where the decision is to refuse the application, the consequences of causing 
or permitting the land to be used as a relevant protected site in contravention 
of the Regulations; and 

 where the decision is to grant the application subject to conditions, the 
consequences of failing to comply with any condition. 

 
Appeals 
 
The applicant can decide to appeal the decision by making an application to the First-
tier Tribunal (Property Chamber) (“the tribunal”) within specific timeframes set by the 
tribunal. The applicant is permitted to appeal against any decisions served by 
Chichester DC. These could include: 

 

 including the relevant person on the register for an effective period of less 
 than five years; 

 including the relevant person on the register subject to conditions;  

 rejecting the application. 
 
Where an applicant accepts Chichester DC’s decision not to include the person 
originally stated in the application on the register, they will be required to seek 
alternative management arrangements to comply with the fit and proper person 
requirement. Failure to do so is an offence.  
 
An appellant will not be able to claim compensation for losses incurred pending the 
outcome of an appeal. 
 
Withdrawal or amendment of notice 
 
There may be circumstances where a local authority may decide not to continue or 
to withdraw a previously agreed action such as after serving: 
 

 a preliminary decision notice but before service of the final decision notice; 

 a final decision notice but before the decision to which it relates takes effect; 
or 

 a notice of proposed action but before the proposed action is taken. 

Page 67



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

 
To withdraw or amend a notice, Chichester DC must serve notice to the person on 
whom the original notice was served. 
 
There are no requirements for notices to contain specific information, however, it is 
recommended that a withdrawal or amendment notice should state:  
 

 That it is withdrawing/amending the original notice (a copy of the original notice 
should be attached for reference);  

 the reasons for withdrawing the notice;  

 the date it takes effect; and, 

 the implications of the decisions in relation to the person’s entry on the 
register. 

 
Removal from the register 
 
If, after a person is included in the register, and new evidence relevant to the person’s 
inclusion becomes available, Chichester DC may decide to: 
 

 remove the person from the register; 

 impose a condition on the inclusion of the person in the register (whether or 
not there are conditions already imposed;  

 vary a condition; 

 remove a condition. 
 
Chichester DC must use its judgement when determining whether to review an entry 
and consider any subsequent actions are required. Any such decision should be 
related to the person being a fit and proper person rather than, for example, site 
licensing issues which are governed separately. If Chichester DC decides to take any 
of the actions listed above a notice of any proposed action on the occupier must be 
issued.  
 
The notice of proposed action must clearly state: 
 

 the date the notice of proposed action is served; 

 the action the local authority proposes to take; 

 the reasons for it; 

 the date it is proposed that the local authority will take the action; 

 information about the right to make written representations; 

 where the proposed action requires the removal of a person from the 
register, the consequences of causing or permitting the land to be used as a 
relevant protected site in contravention of the regulations; and 

 where the proposed action is to impose a condition on the inclusion of a 
person  

 in the register or to vary a condition, the consequences of failing to comply 
with said conditions. 

 

Page 68



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

A notice of proposed action is not required if Chichester DC decides to remove a 
condition attached to an entry. A removal of a condition is viewed widely as being a 
positive step, which is unlikely to be opposed. It is for that reason that a notice of 
proposed action is not required. Chichester DC will endeavour as good practice to 
make the site owner or their manager aware of the decision in in writing and ensure 
the register is updated.  
 
Notice of action taken 

Where a notice of proposed action is given, the occupier will have 28 days, starting 
from the day after the notice is served, in which to make representations.  
 
The local authority must, as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the 28-
day period, decide whether to carry out the proposed action. 
 
Where the local authority decides to take the action, the local authority must serve a 
further notice on the occupier, indicating the action that has been taken, within the 
period of 5 working days beginning with the day after the day on which the action was 
taken. 
 
The notice of action must set out— 
 

 the date the notice of action is served; 

 the fact that they have taken the action; 

 the reasons for doing so; 

 the date the action was taken; 

 information about the right of appeal and the period within which an appeal 
may be made; 

 where the action is to remove a person from the register, the consequences 
of causing or permitting the land to be used as a relevant protected site in 
contravention of regulations; and  

 where the action is to impose a condition on the inclusion of a person in the 
register or to vary a condition, the consequences of failing to comply with any 
condition. 

 
Offences 
 
There are three offences which can occur within the Regulations. They are as 
follows: 
 

1. Operating a site in contravention of the fit and proper person regulations - 
The site owner will have certain defences under the Regulations in any 
proceedings brought against them.  

 
2. Withholding information or including false or misleading information in the 

registration application - The site owner will not have any defences under the 
Regulations in any proceedings brought against them for this offence. 

 
3. Failing to comply with a specified condition - The site owner will have certain 

defences under the Regulations in any proceedings brought against them. 

Page 69



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

 
Chichester DC is responsible for enforcing the Regulations. A site owner found 
guilty of any of the above offences will be liable on summary conviction to a level 5 
(unlimited) fine.  
 

Defences  
 
One defence is available to a site owner who has inherited a site and would be 
found to have a reasonable excuse for failing to make an application within the 
relevant periods as set out below.  
 

Relevant periods in specific circumstances 
 
The below table outlines limited circumstances where a site owner may have a 
defence.  
 
Row Circumstance Relevant period for making an 

application in the circumstance 

1 the occupier held a site licence immediately before 
the day on which regulation 4 (operating a site 
without being a fit and proper person) came into 
force on 1 October 2021. 

From 1st July 2021 before 1 
October 2021, the day on which 
regulation 4 came into force  

2 the period of a person’s inclusion in the register in 
relation to the site has come to an end other than as 
a result of action by the local authority under 
regulation 8(1)(a) (removal from the fit and proper 
register after new relevant evidence becomes 
available). 

not less than two months before 
the end of the period of the 
person’s inclusion in the register 
 

3 at the time that the occupier became entitled to 
within the period of 3 months possession of the land 
it was in use as a relevant protected site; and within 
the period of 28 days beginning with the day after 
the day on which the person became the occupier of 
the land the occupier notifies the relevant local 
authority of its intention to make an application 
under regulation 6 (application for inclusion in the 
register) 

beginning with the day after the 
day on which the person became 
the occupier of the land 
 

4 at the time that the occupier became entitled to 
possession of the land it was in use as a relevant 
protected site; and the occupier does not give the 
notification referred to in row 3 above 

within the period of 28 days 
beginning with the day after the 
day on which the person became 
the occupier of the land 

5 a person appointed to manage the site no longer 
does so; and within the period of 28 days beginning 
with the day after the relevant day the occupier 
notifies the relevant 
local authority that the person no longer does so 

within the period of 3 months 
beginning with the day after the 
relevant day 
 

6 a person appointed to manage the site no longer 
does so; and the occupier does not give the 
notification referred to in row 5 above 

within the period of 28 days 
beginning with the day after the 
relevant day 

7 the breach of regulation 4(1) (operating a site 
without being a fit and proper person) arises 
because the local authority has removed a person 
from the register; and within the period of 28 days 
beginning with the relevant day in relation to the 
local authority’s decision the occupier notifies the 

within the period of 3 months 
beginning with the relevant day 

Page 70



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

relevant local authority of its intention to make a new 
application under regulation 6 (application for 
inclusion in the register) in relation to the site 

8 the breach of regulation 4(1) arises because the 
local authority has removed a person from the 
register; and the occupier does not give the 
notification referred to in row 7 above 

within the period of 28 days 
beginning with the relevant day 
 

9 the breach of regulation 4(1) (operating a site 
without being a fit and proper person) arises 
because the local authority has rejected an in-time 
application; and within the period of 28 days 
beginning with the relevant day in relation to the 
rejected application the occupier notifies the 
relevant local authority of its intention to make a new 
application under regulation 6 

within the period of 3 months 
beginning with the relevant day 
 

10 the breach of regulation 4(1) (operating a site 
without being a fit and proper person) arises 
because the local authority has rejected an in-time 
application; and the occupier does not give the 
notification referred to in row 9 above 

within the period of 28 days 
beginning with the relevant day 

 

The Fit and Proper Persons Register 
 

The local authority must set up and maintain a register of persons who they are 
satisfied are fit and proper persons to manage a site in their area. This register 
must be open to inspection by the public during normal office hours. This register 
also must be published online.  
 

The register will provide a record of the outcome (as discussed above) of the fit and 
proper person tests the local authority have carried out for sites. There is a template 
available on the Government Guidance, referred to as Annex A, and the register 
must include the following: 
 

 the name and business contact details of the person; 

 the name and address of the relevant protected site to which the application 
relates; 

 the status of the person (site owner or manager of the site); 

 the dates of the first and last day of the period for which the person’s 
inclusion in the register has effect; 

 whether any condition is attached to the person’s inclusion in the register; 
and 

 where any condition is attached to the person’s inclusion in the register— 
(i) the number of any such conditions; 
(ii) the dates of the first and last day of the period for which any such 

condition applies (if applicable); and 
(iii) the date any condition is varied or satisfied (if applicable). 

 
Where a person has met the fit and proper person test, the register will give details 
of that person and of the associated site, including decisions made on how long a 
person’s inclusion is for (up to a maximum of five years).  
 

Page 71



F&PPT Determination Policy V1 (September 2021) 

 

In order to comply with the fit and proper person requirement, a site owner must 
submit a new application for the person (or alternative) to be included in the 
register. The new application must be submitted at least two months before the 
existing inclusion in the register comes to an end.  
 
Where there are rejected applications, the following information must be included in 
the register: 
 

 the name and address of the site to which the application relates; 

 that an application in respect of the site has been rejected; and 

 the date on which the application was rejected. 
 
Details of the rejected application will remain on the register until a successful fit 
and proper person application is made in respect of the owner or manager of the 
site. The name of the rejected applicant will not be included on the register, 
however Chichester DC will be able to consider requests for further information 
about the entry on the register; for example, the details of the specific conditions 
attached and any additional information, on a case by case basis and in 
accordance with data protection legislation. 
 
Where Chichester DC has. with the site owner’s consent, appointed a person to 
manage the site, Chichester DC must include the following information: 
 

 the name and business contact details of the person; 

 the name and address of the site which the person has been appointed to 
manage; 

 the status of the person; 

 the dates of the first and last day of the period for which the person’s 
inclusion in the register has effect; 

 whether any condition is attached to the person’s inclusion in the register; 
and 

 where any condition is attached to the person’s inclusion in the register – 
 

(i) the number of any such conditions; 
(ii) the dates of the first and last day of the period for which any such 

condition applies (if applicable); and 
(iii) the date any condition is varied or satisfied (if applicable). 

 
 

 

 
    
 
 

 
 

Page 72



Chichester District Council 
 
CABINET         7 December 2021 

 
Expenditure under the  

Planting Trees Outside Woodlands Project  
 

 
1. Contacts 
 

Report Author: 
 
Tom Day – Environmental Coordinator  
Telephone: 01243 534854 E-mail: tday@chichester.gov.uk 
 
Cabinet Member:  
   
Penny Plant - Cabinet Member for Environment and Chichester Contract Services 
Telephone: 01243 575031 E-mail: pplant@chichester.gov.uk 
 

2. Recommendation  
 

2.1 That Cabinet delegates authority to the Director of Planning and Environment, 
following consultation with the Cabinet Member for the Environment and 
Chichester Contract Services for the release of grant funding from DEFRA for 
the following two projects: 

2.1.1 £25,000 for the Agroforestry and Orchards Pilot; and 
2.1.2 £40,000 for the Hedgerow Tree Pilot 

 
3. Background 

 
3.1 In September 2020, Chichester District Council was invited to join a DEFRA funded 

pilot project after one of the existing partners left the partnership.   Chichester District 
Council is one of five local authorities included in the project nationwide and the only 
District or Borough Authority. 
 

3.2 The purpose of the project is to trial different approaches to tree planting outside 
woodlands which has proved to be both difficult and not cost effective.  DEFRA 
committed up to £400K to the District Council to lead on the Subsidised Tree Pilot, 
including funding a Project Officer for 2.5 years and also to replicate the pilots led by 
the other project partners. 
 

3.3 It is developments within these other pilots that has led to the need for this Cabinet 
report to establish the process for releasing grant funding within the project, although 
the funding will be provided by DEFRA. 
 
Agroforestry and Orchards Pilot 

3.4 This pilot is being led by Shropshire Council.  The concept for the pilot is twofold, 
firstly that landowners and farmers within the geographical areas participating in the 
pilot: Shropshire, Cornwall, Norfolk and Chichester would be able to apply for grant 
funding for establishing agroforestry projects on their land. Agroforestry is the 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9

mailto:tday@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:pplant@chichester.gov.uk


growing of trees around or amongst crops or pasture. Secondly, that landowners, 
community groups and parish councils would be able to apply for grant funding to 
establish community orchards.  The District Council’s role was to promote the funding 
locally but the scheme would be administered centrally by Shropshire 
Council.  Unfortunately the Project Officer at Shropshire has now left the 
authority.  With no Project Officer in place, it has been decided that the funding will 
be distributed to the individual partner authorities to grant fund projects in their 
areas.  Therefore the administration of the grants will need to be undertaken by CDC 
and a decision-making mechanism established.  The total budget allocated to the 
District Council is up to £25,000 for this financial year.  Although Expressions of 
Interest have been received for the funding, we have not yet received any 
applications. 
 
Hedgerow Tree Pilot 

3.5 This pilot is being led by Cornwall Council.  The project will trial different approaches 
for establishing hedgerow trees.  Landowners have been approached who are willing 
to trial options on their land.  Originally it was intended that the District Council would 
pay the contractors directly and have a Memorandum of Understanding with the 
landowners for them to manage the trees for the duration of the project (until March 
2023).  However following further consideration, it appears that it would be more 
straightforward for the landowners to appoint contractors and they would be 
reimbursed from the project budget as a grant for their expenditure.  Three 
landowners have committed to take part in the pilot with a proposed expenditure of 
up to £40,000 for this financial year.  Again, since the landowners will be reimbursed 
for their expenditure effectively as a grant, a suitable governance process will need to 
be established. 

 
4. Outcomes to be Achieved 

 
4.1 The main outcome to be achieved is to increase the numbers of trees planted in 

Chichester District with benefits for biodiversity and climate change mitigation and 
adaptation. 
 

4.2 By agreeing the recommendations, the Council will be fulfilling its obligations as a 
partner of the Planting Trees Outside Woodlands Project and as set out in the 
Memorandum of Agreement between the District Council and DEFRA. 
 

4.3 The main outcome for the whole Planting Trees Outside Woodlands Project is to 
influence future government policy and to develop new ways of expanding biosecure 
tree cover outside woodlands at reduced costs to meet increased ambition in 
England. 
 

5. Proposal 
 

5.1 This proposal is to establish the internal mechanism for distributing the DEFRA 
funded grant allocations under the Planting Trees Outside Woodlands Project. 

 
5.2 It is proposed that the final decision on the allocations of grant funding to landowners, 

and other applicants through the Agroforesty and Orchards Pilot and the Hedgerow 
Pilot, be by the delegated authority of the Director of Planning and Environment, 
following consultation with the Cabinet Member for the Environment and Chichester 
Contract Services.   

Page 74



 
6. Alternatives Considered 

 
6.1 The decisions could be made by the Grants and Concessions Panel.  However this 

was considered too onerous on the basis that the funding through this project was 
different to the consideration of grants through the grants and concessions panel in a 
number of ways: 
1) The origin of the grant funding is from DEFRA, as opposed to CDC funding.  The 

external mechanism for distributing the funding has already been agreed and trial 
sites identified.  Grant funding is the mechanism to reimburse landowners for 
expenditure undertaken, as opposed to paying contractors directly; 

2) The grant funding is not an open process, there is not an open call for sites as 
sites have been selected for their suitability for tree planting and as trial sites; 

3) DEFRA has specified the requirements for the identification of sites and 
distribution of funding and since the pilots are trials, these requirements do not 
completely align with those under the Grants and Concessions Scheme. 
 

7. Resource and Legal Implications 
 

7.1 For this financial year, the level of funding to be allocated through the relevant pilots 
is up to: 

 
 £25,000 – Agroforestry and Orchards Pilot 
 £40,000 – Hedgerow Tree Pilot 
 
 For the other pilots: Urban Tree Pilot and Subsidised Tree Pilot, funding is distributed 

not as grant funding but as direct payments to contractors and for the direct purchase 
of trees, sundries, fencing and works and thefore falls outside the scope of this 
report. 

 
7.2 Staffing implications. The project can be accommodated within existing staff 

resources via the Tree Project Officer supported by the Environmental Coordinator. 
 
8. Consultation 

 
8.1 The financial implications of the Planting Trees Outside Woodlands Project have 

been discussed with Finance, Legal and the Procurement Teams.  Recent 
discussions with the Community Engagement Manager identified the need for an 
internal mechanism for the distribution of funding from the project as grant funding. 
 

8.2 The development of the pilot has been discussed regularly with the external project 
partners, including DEFRA, Natural England, The Tree Council and the other four 
local authority partners. 
 

9. Community Impact and Corporate Risks  
 

9.1 The main community impacts will be increased tree planting and increased 
partnership working within the district. 
 

9.2 The main Corporate Risks without the mechanism as described, is that we do not 
fulfil our obligations on transparency and trust, although the funding has originated 

Page 75



from DEFRA who have agreed to the distribution of funds as described. 
 

9.3 One of the main risks for the project is that the sites do not come forward as trial sites 
for tree planting and the funding is not allocated. 

 
10. Other Implications 

  

 Yes No 

Crime and Disorder   X 

Climate Change and Biodiversity Yes positive impacts for addressing 
climate change locally and for biodiversity  

X  

Human Rights and Equality Impact Equality issues has been 
considered by the wider partnership, including ensuring that the funding for 
trees is accessible to all 

X  

Safeguarding and Early Help   X 

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)  
Appopriate handling of data collected is integral to the project  

X  

Health and Wellbeing 
By supporting tree planting there should be minor but positive impacts on 
health and wellbeing 

X  

 
11. Appendices 

 
11.1 None 

 
12. Background Papers 

 
12.1 None 

Page 76



 
 

Notice of the Making of an Urgent Decision  
 

Para 1 of the second sub-section of section 3 in Part 3 of Chichester District Council’s 
Constitution provides for any senior officer to make urgent decisions following consultation 
with the Leader or Deputy Leader of the Council and the Chairman of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on any matters where it is not practicable to refer these to a meeting of 
the Council, the Cabinet or other committee provided that a full report on any decisions 
taken shall subsequently be made. A decision of this nature has been made as set out 
below: 
 

Decision title Provision of Trade Waste Bins 

Decision taker John Ward 

Decision 
consultees 

Eileen Lintill , Leader and Elizabeth Hamilton, Chairman of the Council 
in the absence of Clare Apel, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Decision date  17 November 2021 

Decision details  That in the absence of a Cabinet and Full Council  meeting the 
following be approved: 
 
Following a successful bidding process for the West Sussex County 
Council Schools and Administrative Buildings Waste Contract, CCS 
need to invest in additional commercial waste bins. The cost of these 
will be recovered over the life of the contract. 
 
CCS have been very successful in winning additional and lucrative 
contracts during 2021. To date these have been absorbed by their 
existing resources. However, the successful award of the WSCC’s 
contract serving 132 sites (including 98 schools) means that CCS will 
have to invest in £85,000 worth of additional trade bins. This cannot be 
accommodated in their existing budgets, and so an allocation from 
reserves is required. 
 
The cost of the bins has already been factored into the contract price 
and will be fully recovered over the duration of the contract. 
   

Reason for 
urgency 

Contract award necessitating an urgent start up. 

Name and date 
of the meeting to 
receive a full 
report 

 To be noted at the next Cabinet meeting. 

       
John Ward 

Director of Corporate Services 
17 November 2021 

Page 77

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 99

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 127

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Approval of Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Determination of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2022-2023
	Determination of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2022-2023 - Appendix

	7 Determination of the Council Tax Base 2022-2023
	Determination of the Council Tax Base 2022-2023 - Appendix 1
	Determination of the Council Tax Base 2022-2023 - Appendix 2

	8 Fees and Policies under The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020
	Fees and Policies under The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020 - Appendix 1
	Fees and Policies under The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020 - Appendix 2
	Fees and Policies under The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020 - Appendix 3

	9 Expenditure under the Planting Trees Outside Woodlands Project
	11 Urgent Decision Notice - Trade Waste Bins
	13 Beach Management Plan (BMP) - Shingle Replenishment 2022-2024
	Beach Management Plan (BMP) – Shingle Replenishment 2022-2024 - Appendix 1
	Beach Management Plan (BMP) – Shingle Replenishment 2022-2024 - Appendix 2

	14 Chichester Contract Service: Procurement of new refuse collection vehicles
	Chichester Contract Service: Procurement of new refuse collection vehicles - Appendix

	15 Leisure Services Contract Update
	16 Southern Gateway Project
	Southern Gateway Project - Appendix 1
	Southern Gateway Project - Appendix 2
	Southern Gateway Project - Appendix 3
	Southern Gateway Project - Appendix 4

	17 Urgent Decision Notice - Westgate Decarbonisation Project

